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Aspris Holdco Limited
Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022

The Directors present their strategic report of the period fiom 28 July 2021 to 31 August 2022,

‘Throughout the document, references to the “Company” refer to Aspris Holdeo Limited. References to the “Group”
refer to Asptis Holdeo Limited and lts subsidiaries. All amounts are presented in GBP £m, unless otherwise stated.

Principal activit
The principal activity of the company s {0 rct as an investiment holding company,

The Group is a leading provider of specialist education and care services to young people in the UK, Educaling and
caring for a wide spectrum of specialist education and mental healthcare needs, including autism, learning difficulties,
social, emotional and mental health conditions (SEMEI). In addition, the Group provides specialist education and
mental health services to young people and adulis respectively actoss the Middle East. The Group operates via two
primery divisions:

s The UK divisions provide education and residential care and assessment for children with speciafist
emotional and behavioura! difficulties or autistio spectinun disorders,

s The Middle East divisions provide education to young people in the UAE, and menfal healthcare and
wellbeing selvices fo adults and young people in UAE and KSA.

Business Review
Development of the business

The Company was incorporated on the 28 July 2021, and on the 31 August 2021 acquived 100% of the shareholding
of Aspris Children’s Services Limited (*ACSL") {previously named Priery Education Services Limited) through the
100% owned subsidlary Aspris Bideo Limited, These financlal statements represent the resulls of the activities of the
Company since [ncorporation, the activities of the Aspris group since the dete of acquisition and the subsequent
acquisiiions and disposals described befow. Prior to the acquisition of ACSL the Group did not have any trading or
operations and so the metrics quoted below as pait of the 'Performance of the Business' section are for the bwelve
months ending 3 Lst August 2022,

On 28 January 2022 the wholly owned ACSL purchased 100% of the shareholding in SC Topeo Limited. From this
date the consolidated rasulis and aclivities of SC Topes Linited {*Sandeastle Care') arc rspresented in these financial
statements.

On 31 March 2022 ACSL acquired 100% of the sharcholding in Hoflyblue Healthcare (Avden) limiled, latterly
renamed Aspris (Arden) Limliled. From this date the results and activitles of this acquired entity are represented in
these financial statements, Please see note 17 to the financial statements for additional information on the above
business combinations completed during the period.

1n addition to the Group's primary focus of providing high quality education and care to all those within jts services,
the Group has also been focused on the successfil completion of the following key developments:

»  Separation (fom the Friory Group of companies. Whiist the operations of ACSL were largely autonomous
irom those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the reciplent of central support services pravided to it by
the Priory Group. These services continued under a transitional services arrangement agreed at the time of
the Group's acquisition of ACSL. This transilional stage included the Implementation of Aspris” own
standalone systems and support infirastructure, the process of which was completed by 1% January 2023, with
all services received under this transitional arrangement ceased to be provided from that date,



Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Dusiness Raviow {continued)

Develop

*

ment of thic business {continued)

Acquisition and inlegration of Sandcastle Care into the Aspris Group. Sandcastle Care provides residentlel
cace places far over 100 young people, primarity in the Not1h West of the UK. These services are slmilar in
nature to those already provided by the Group. The integration and incorporation of this business into the
Group has been a foeus for members of the management team during the peviod,

Revicw of Group strategy and long-term plan. Following the success ful separation from Prioiy Groug, the
Group has undertaken a broad review of the koy slrategic direction and cbjectives of the business. The
compietion of this process provides the overacching framework within which the business is munaged and
dicected by the Board and senior management,

Continued expansion of our Middle East operations. Since establishing a presence in the UAE in 2017,
ACSL has steadily grown the provision of services in the region to cater for the education and care necds of
both young people and adults, including geographic expansion into KSA, Whilst the Middle East division
remains small relative to the primary UK operations (please vefer to note 4 lo the financial statements for
the split of revenue for the period ending 31 August 2022), the region represents a central parl of the
Group’s development stvalegy,

Performance of the Business

The key financial and non-financial performance indicators during the period were as follows:

Key KPIs 2022
Turaaver £179.2m
Opevating profit before Tmpaitment losses und Exceptional costs £23.1m
Quality 81.2%
Capacity 1,91¢
Cocupancy 1,660
Oceupancy % 86.9%
Annual Growth in Middle East patient appeinlments 51.1%
Notes:

1. Operaling prafit measare of £23.1m i3 equal to the Group's Operating loss £4.7m stated before Exceptional costs of £7.8in, Impairment

losses of £19.7m end Olher lozses of £0,.3m

2

Qualily, Capacity and Occupancy melries relote Lo the UK business only, unless slaled

3. Crpacity en Geeupaney qualed are aveniges for the period on @ non-proforma basts, with dual piacement(s incltded es a single unit of
capacity and accupancy




Aspris Holdeo Limnited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Business Review (eontinued)

Quality of owr sexvices

A primary indicator of the Group*s performance is the level of Quality of the services we provide to those in our
care,

Regulatory requirements differ across the Group, though the vast majority of our UK services are regulated by the
Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services aad Skills (*Ofsted’), aud in Scotland and Wales by their
local equivalent. All schools and children*s homes must be licenscd, and the relevaat regulators award quality
retings to cach service. In Abu Dhabi, the sshool opetated by the Group is regulated by the Abu Dhebi Department
of Education and Knowledge (*ADEK”) but is also subjest to Brilish School Gverseas inspections. In addition, a
limited number of our services are also reguilated the Care Quality Commission (*CQC”) in England, and, in
Scotland, Wales, Northern reland, and 1he Middle East, by the local equivalent.

Within the UK the Group achieved an average % of fecilities rated as Gooed or above by their respective vegulators
of 83,2%. This is ebove the national benchimark Iove! published by Ofsted but is below where the business’
objectives are In this area. The provision of the best quality service is a key priovity and the business is focused on
continuous improvement in this aves, supported by increased jnvestment it our support functions that directly or
indircetly support the guality of our services.

Within the Middle East, the Group’s specialist education operations jn Abu Dhabi (the first dedicated autism school
in Abu Dhabi for Emirati students in partnership with ADEK) underwent the first major inspection of a dedicated
aulism school in the region, The outcome of this inspection was formally announced on 1 November 20232, with the
school achieving an Ouislanding rating across all areps. This further demonstrates the Group’s established delivery
of exceptional level specialist education services beyond the Group’s primary UK mavket,

Results for the perlod

The Group delivered high quality services to meel the needs of a wide spectrum of young people, families, Local
Authgritles and communities across the UK and Middle East. With an average number of 1,660 young people using
onr services in the UK during the period and 180 young people in the Middle East, In addition, the volume of outpaticnt
appointments In our Middle Bast Wellbeing centres increased by 51.19 vs the equivalent prior period, driven partly
by the opening of two new cenfres in Abu Dhab! and Saudf Arabia.

The results for the year ave set out in the consolidated Income Statement on page 26 and the financial position of the
Group as at 31 August 2022 is set out in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position on page 28. Group revenus
for the year was £179.2m and Qperating profit before exceptional costs, impairment loss end ather losses was £23,1m,
which represents an operating margin of 12.9% of revenue. Key factors of the operating profitabilily of the business
include the number of service users in our facilities, the avallabilily and cost of staffing and the cost of assoclated non-
wage costs required to support the young people and our operations more generally.

The Group’s tiet loss for the period was £27.1m, which wes after charging £19.7m impaitment to goodwill relating ta
the Sandcastle division, and after £7.8m of exceptional costs, these primarily refate to the costs incurred in relation to
the corporate {ransactions undertaken and ouilined above and in note 17. Further detalls of these exceptional charges
and impatrment are given in notes 10 and 15 to the financial stetements.

The Group’s financial posltion and underlying operating cash generation is positive, with net assets of £92.0m at the
close of the petied and net cash flow from operating astivilies during the period of £34.2m,
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Business Review (continued)

Resuits for the peried {(contineed)

The largest compenent of our cost base is the wages and related oncosts of our sialf, which yepresents 67% of operating
cosls,

Staff are our primary resource and the Group prievitiscs the wellbeing, vetention and recruilment of owr workforce.
This ncludes increased investmenl in siaff wages, but also in a range of measores designed to increase slaff wellbeing
and engagelent,

Staff shortages have been a feature of the reporting period, with a small number of our available residential places
being offline due to these constraints, Despite liese factors the financial performance of the Group was inline with the
original business plan supporting the acquisition of ACSL.

Futwre developmeuts and strategy

Managenient consides the Group to be in 8 good position Lo expand the provision of its services in both the UK and
Middle East. Building on its existing high quality provision and strong repulation within each region fo provide
essentigl services lo a greater number of people in the communities that i1 serves.

The Group strategy prioritises the improvement of quality and ulilisation across all our existing facilities, in parallel
wilh conttnuing to expand Lhe specialist education aspects of the business, With the planned opening of new education
capacity at existing and newly idenlified sites, being complemented by the targeled and selective acquisition of
existing specialist educalion providers.

Following the close of the reporting period, and consistent with this strategy, the Group cempleted the acquisition of
a speclalist education provider in the UK, BHIS Holdings Limited. The acquired business, and its wholly owned
subslidiaries, provide speclalist education for up lo approximeaiely 100 primary and secondaty school aged young
people in the East of Bngland. To support this acquisition, and the Group®s broader growth objectives, the Group
entered Inlo an extension of its available external debt facilities with its exisling lenders. This new growth facility was
sgreed and effective from 8 February 2023.

In addition, after the close of the reporting period the Group compleled a reorganisation of its UK operations. This
reorganisation is aimed at improving and strengthening the management structuve to increase focus on delivering on
the Group’s objectives for all aspects of our services, including optimising staffing, and thereby improving utilisation
across our portfolio, by increasing ransparency and managemenl eommunication Huough all levels of the business.

In the Middle East, the Group is growing vla the maturlng of ils recently opened Wellbeing Centres end via wider
opportunities to expand the education offering across region. In KSA the Group opened a Wellbeing Centre in
Riyadh through its joinl venture with a local partner that was entered into in 2020, The Group conlinues o view
current and future local parinerships in the region as a key avenue for growth,




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group can be impacted by a range of external factors, The principal factors ere the availability and relention of
the appropriate number of trained and qualtfied staff, the macro-gconomlo environment resulting i increased inflation
and {ncreased intesest rates, chenges in the UK goverament’s policy towards the funding of specialist education and
care, changes in the veguiatory regime, compelilive threats from other providers and the loss of key Individuals, The
following ave the most significant risks and uncertainties facing the Group,

Failure to comply with regalation and iucreased regulatory costs

All of the Group’s services are subject to a high level of regulation by various regulatory bodies, Laws and
regulations are evolving within {he sector {and may be introduced in the future} that could impose incrcased costs on
the Group's operations. The Group is unable to predict the content of nevy legislation and/or regulations and their
effect on its business.

Tnspections by regulstors are cereied out on both 2i announced and unanmounced basis, dependent an the specific
regulatory provisions relating to different cave or edueation services, The failure o comply with relevant regulations,
that therefore leads to the determination of regulatory non-compliance, or the failure of the Group to cure any defect
noted in an inspection report could result in the revocation or imposition of conditions on the regislration of any
service or a decrease in or cessation of, services provided by the Group at one or more of its facilities.

To milipate these risks, the quality of care is monitored by an experlenced team and through the establishment of
robust policies and procedures. The team are independent of the operating divisions and report directly lo the Board,
Homes are regularly audited by the team 1o ensure compliance with care standards and action plans are drawn up in
appropriate cases. Risks alse mitigated by investing in the lega!l and complisnce leam, and in recruitment and
training, Where changes in legislation can be predicted, the Group models the impact the changes will have in
advance of (he legislation being, implemented.

Fmmployecs

The Group's performance depends on iis operational staf€ at our schools and residential homes. The managers of our
facilities, and their respective site tcams, are essential for the provision of our services, The loss of key individuals
and the inability to recruil people with the right experience and skills from the local community could adveisely
impact the Group's results.

The retevant labour markets for certain of our services have become mare challenging over the reporting period and
may continue (o be challenging, or become more so, in the future, This may lead to an increase in the number of
staff vacancies across the Group and therefore restrict the proportion of our capacity that can be fully operational
and/or slow future growth prospects, Whilst the challenges have been less evident in the Education pottion of the
business, as comrpared to the residential aspects of our services, it has neverthefess been a factor across the Group,

To mitigate these [ssues the Group has implemented a wide range of measures 10 enhance both our recruitment and
vetention of staff. These initiatives are led by dedicated senjor management from our Human Resources department,
along with our Learning ang Development functlon, and are targeted st improving overall employee welfare and to
ensure our sfaff offering, both financia) and non-financial, is competitive within the markets in which we operate,

Specifically, regarding staff pay, the Directors take steps to ensure competitive salary levels across the Group and
have sought to increase across salaties across {he Group during the period to aid retention and recrnitmeat, with
specific consideration to the cost-of-living increases on all staff caused by the macro-economic envirenment.

However, there is a risk that these selary levels are not sufficlent to improve the Group’s staff metrics and therefore
furthet constraints on our services due to staif shortages may be possible.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 Aupust 2022 (continied)
Privcipat Risks aaul Uncerfainties (eontinued)

Nan-Wage supplies and eost inflation

1n addition to woukforce remuneration, the Group also incurs cosls on a range of supplies, including food, education
supplies, enexgy/utilities and rental expenses. The ourrent macro-economic backdrop places increasing pressore on
the avallability and cost of certain key supplies.

With energy, and other bullk preduct supply, chaflenges aeross Burope driving hipher inflation levels than in
previous years lhere is Increased price pressure on the Group’s cost buse, There is a risk that these costs increase
further and, whilst they are a2 minority of the Giroup’s cost base, increases could sti{l be material,

In addition, there is & risk that certain supplies will 1ake longes to source and therefore substitute producls may need
to be found, there is a risk this could cause distuplion to our services and that alternative supplies may be more
costly that those supplics which they replace.

In addition, certain supplies, such a3 food, are sourced from a low number of major nalional suppliers and therefore
thers may be & visk that distuption of service at one supplier, or price changes by those suppliers, could have an impast
on the Group.

To mitigate fiese arezs the Group has a dedicafed procurement function focused on optimising our sources, cosis of
and security of supply, The Group engages on a regular basis with all our key suppliers to ensure elfeclive managerient
of those risks, Tn addilion, the Group secks to agrec pricing and security of supply on a forward basis where possible
and appropriate, for example on our energy supplies, to increase visibility over cost and reduce supply side risks.
Management of these risks include maintaining relatlonships with secondary source supplies to ensure options are
available to mitigate disruptions in supply f[rom a particular provider.

Lioss of revenue from contracts with U local authorities

A subslantial proportion of the Group's UK revenue derives from publicly funded Local Authorities. ‘The Group
expecis 1o continue lo rely on the ability and willingness of these bodies 1o pay for the Group’s seryices, Whilst
there is an obligation for Looal Authorities to fund the provision of such services to young people there Is a risk that
either budget constraints or other financial pressures could cause such publicly funded bodies to allocale less money
ta the types of service thet the Group provides, or that political change or policy changes mean that fewer scrvices
are confracied from independent secior providers.

In addition, there Is o risk that these Local Authorities are not able to meel the increased costs of us viably providing
services at certain facilities, due io the above-mentloned cost pressures.

To miligate these risks the Group regularly assesses services provided to ensure they represent value for money and
where neceseary reposillons services to align with demand. Through the Group’s dedicated Bidding and
Commissioning team, and otler tnembers of our senior management team, the Group engages in regular
communication with our Local Autharities customers to ensure these is clear and open dinlogue with our key
custemes.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Lrincipal Risks and Uncertainties {continued)

IT security and Data Protection

The Group’s LT infraslructure is an integral part of its operating capability. This infrastructure provides connectivity,
herdware and softvare applications 1o all of our facilities and central funclions, Furthermote, the Group holds laige
volumes of sensitive data, a portion of which resides within our 1T cavironment,

There Is a risk that the systems or applications fail er are subject o a securily breach that temporarily prevents thelr
use and therefore impacts our services, In addition, such sn event may compromise sensitive data held within the
Group relating to its eustomers, Which coutd expose the Group to further liability due to such & breach.

The Group invests significantly in meeting these potential risks, With s dedicated IT depariment teasonable for the IT
environment and security, complimented by external expert advice and services procured to enhance key aspects of
Data Protection and Cybey security,

Impact from the rvislks related to the Covld-1§ pandemic

The global outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020 vepresented B significant source of uncertainty within the wider
mecroceonomic envivonment, including the sectors in which the Group operates. Distuplion was experienced by mast
sectors, and the Group’s services yvere not immune to these impacts,

Given the pature of our services the Group continued to operate its full service provision, with all schools and homes
rermmaining open in the UK, and our Middle East Wellbeing centres moving successfully to en online appointmeat
based madel. The teams actoss the Group performed with outstanding professionalism to enswre we continued fo
deliver essential education and care to all those tha rely on our services,

‘Whilst there were notable staff absences due to self-isolation, and the resulting operational challengos, the long term
financial impact on the Group was not significant, and with the exceplion of the longer term constrainis that have
impacted the general labour market referenced above, the Group s cutrently nat impacted by the pandemie.

The Directors belisve any further similac outbreak would be met with a similar successful response, but there is a risk
that a new Covid variant, or other pandemic, mey have a greater impact on the Group’s ability to provide its services.

To mitigate this the Group has clear and robust nfection contre! policies, including contingency planning fer staffing
in the event of a further outbreak.

10
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Prineipnl Risks and Uncertainties (confinged)

Financial vislc manapement

The Group Is exposed lo financiat risks in the form of oredit, interest and liquidity risks which arise in the normal
course of business. The primary financial risks that the Group is exposed to are noted below, for furthier detail on these
financial risks please see note 27.

Credit risk

Financial instruments which potentially expose the Group to eredit risk consist primarily of cash and trade receivables,
Casl is only deposited with mgjor financial institutions that satisfy certain credit criteria,

Credit risk }s not considered 1o be significant given that over 90% of revenue is derived from publicly funded entittes,
and payment is taken in advance or at lime of treatmenl for privately funded healthcare services at our Wellbeing
centres,

Tuterest rate risk

The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving externel eredit facilities. All the exteinal debt ol the
Group contalns u vaviable element which Is linked to the Sterling Qvernight Index Average, published by the Bank of
England. Senior loans are vepayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving facilities are repayable on 31 August 2026.

The Group regularly reviews the options available to it for the hedging of interest rate risk, but currently does not have
a hedged component to the interest borden on ils external debt, In Kght of prevalling mavket conditions, and the high
cost of hedging instruments, the Directors believe the Group has sufficient capacity to address the risk of interest rate
rises.

Liquldity rislc

The Group prepares annual and monthly cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated projects.
The Group has sufficient avaltable facilities and cash flows from profils to fund current commitments. The Group has
access o a Revolving Credit Facility that is available to support tha Group's operational liquidity requitements at the
signing of the financial statemenis the majority of this Revolving Credit Facility was undrawn.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Section 172(1) statement

The following Sectlon 172 statement, which is required by the Companies Act 2006, describes how fhe Directors
have had regard to the matlois set out in 5172 (la lo 1£) including key decislons and maltess that are of sirategic
importance to the Group. The Board of Directors, in line with their duties under 5172 of the Companies Act 2006,
act in 8 way tey consider, in good faith weuld be most Jkely to promote the success of the Group for the benefit of
its members as 2 whole, and in doing so have regatd to a range of maliers when making decisians for the long term.

We aim lo pursue an open and transparent dialogue with our key stakehalders in order 4o develop a cleay
understanding of thelr needs, asscss thelr perspectives and monitor thelr impact on our shiategie objectives, As part
of the Board’s decision-meking process, the Directors consider the potentia! impact of decisions on relevant
stakcholders whilst also having regard to 2 number of broader fectors, including the impact of the Group’s
apevations on the communlty and envifonmenl, responsible business practices and the likely consequences of
declsions in the long term.

Key stakeholders

Our key stakeholders are our service users (and their familles), our wotldorce, our regulators and our investors and
lenders. Owr commissioners, suppliers, and the communities ywe operale within are 8lse impoctant stakeholder groups.
Al key Board decisions take into account the impact on the relevant stakcholder groups, as follows:

Service users and their familics

The Group provides specialist education, care and mental liealth services to a wide mage of young people in the UK,
and 1o young people and adults in the Middle Fast. Those to whom services are provided, and thelr families, are
fundamental to every aspect of the Group’s operations and otjeetives. The Directors monitor the quality of service
provisionto ensure the highest levels of care are provided by a highly skilled and well equipped workforce. In addition,
the Directors monitor the condition and appropriateness of the environment across the Group’s facilities to ensure the
physical environment in which services arc provided ave appropriately configured and maintained ta the high standaids
required for teading cducation and cate provision. Feedback is recefved directly theough aur operational tearas, who
interact directly with service users and lheir families, and through multiple channels of communication to sentor
managenient to ensure issues can be raised and escalated outside of any specific care team or facility. The directors
are committed te open communication and transparency regarding all aspects of our service delivery, and easuring
the Group's operations deliver service provision to meet the specific needs of each individual service user,

Workforce

Qur workforce is key to providing safe and effective care io those whom we support. The Gioup employs a wide array
of specialist education and care professionals and engagement with those employees is paramount. The Directors
menitor the results of staff surveys, both regular and ad hoc, together with the Group’s system of employes forunis
which accur at local, reglonal and national level, meaning the Board is able to discuss human resourcing matters with
the interests of its workforce at heart. An example of sctions taken in response (o the feedback generated through these
channels is the avticufation of tallored career pathways availabie to all Group enployees. Annual salary reviews are
undettaken with reference to the importance of colleague retention, changes iu the National Living Wage, and
commercial factors. The Directors are committed to communiceting the resuits of any wage reviews in a wansparent
mannet. Further information in respect of employees is sct out on the Direclors’ report.

Investors

Qur shareholders register consists of a majority shareholders, Standbyce 35 B.V, who are wholly ovwned by Waterland
Private Bquity Investments B.V., and a number of minority shareholders which includes our largest single landlord
(Medical Properties Trust) and various members of the Group's management team, The Board engages regularly with
its major shareholders in arder to, inter alia, develop long-term and short-term business strategy, decide upon resoutce
allocation and consider key business risks, This includes regular reporting to both Waterland Private Equily and
Medical Propetties Trust to ensure clear alignment and transperency over Group performance and divection.
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Stratepic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Section 172(1) statement {continued)

Repulators

We are subject to a high degree of regulation, paiticularly in relation to the registration and ongoing inspection of our
services. The “business review” seclion above outiing the key regulatory bodies. Resulis of inspections and tmore
genera) reports made by the regulators are discussed by lhe Board where appropriate, and ongeing dialogue is
maintained in order to respond with sgility to emerging areas of focus, Some of our regulators also have responsibility
for monitoring the ongolng financial viability of our business — senior management meet with the regulators
periadically to engage in this piocess. StafT boruses schemes at al! levels of the organisation are al least partly linked
to the outcomnes of internal and external quality metrics.

Customers

The majotity of our revenue is generated fiom the provision of services to Lacal Authoritics and ather public badies,
with a minority of revenues generated from private funding. In all cases is important thal we evolve our service
provision (o satisfy local demaud (the needs of whicl can change over time), mest changing education and care criteria
and provide such services at the vight time and place a1 an appropriate cost, Communication wilh customers js ongoing
both locally and netionally, and the Board wil} consider the requirements of customers when allocating resources for
new or amended sarvice offerings, and agreeing a general approach to funding,

SupyHiers

We aim (o treat our supplizrs faivly and work in partnership with them as they provide essential goads and services to
the Group. It is our policy o adhere 1o agreed credit teyms. We mainlain sivong supplier relationships across our supply
chains, fed by the Group’s dedicated procurement finetion, Our key suppliers alse includes our contracted workforee,
agency workers and related staffing agencies in the teaching and cave professions, who play an essentlal 1ole in
delivering quality services. For all supplies we engage in {ransparent and robust tendering and enboarding processes
{o deliver fair and sustainable cutcomes for suppliers and for the Group.

Communitles

Tlhe Group operates nationally and many of owr facilities are embedded within the wider community, It is therefore
imporiant that the impact of our operalions on the communities we operate in ere laken into consideralion. We are
also cognisant of the need to consider the overall environment when coniracting with suppliers, or considering any
significant development projects, for example.

Principal decisions

The Group defines prineipal decisions as those (hat are material, or of stratepic importence to the Group, and afso
those thal have e significant impact on any of our key stakeholder groups. By way of example, & selection of principal
deoisions taken by the Board during the vear is set out below, highlighting the primary stakehiolder groups affected
and sottie of the considerations taken inta account in 1eaching those principal declsions.

Approval of the 2022/23 hudget

The Board approved, prior to the start of the new financial and academic year, the finai budget for the twelve months
ending 3 1st August 2023, The budget includes forecasts for cach existing facility as well as central functions in order
1o atrive at an aggregated business plan. The key stakeholder groups affecled ave our investors and ouy workforce.
Some of the key considerations taken into pccount included the balance of delivering ever greater quality of services,
improved staff relention and growth of our services to service a greater number of people,
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Section 172(1) statement (continued)

Facllity refurbishments, expansions and service changes

As part of the 2022/23 budget, and locking shead into the medium term, the Board approved a number of significant
capital expenditure projects in order to refurbish and/or expand existing faciities, retool locations o better reflect
demand for services and consider sciective additione! property acquisitions to expand certain service lines. The key
stakeholder groups affected ave our investors, our commissioners and current and future service users. Some of the
key considerations taken into account included the likely return on investment of such projects, the ability of a project
to meet the requitements of comraissioners in providing a particular service, and our abllity to safely and effectively
operate the service.

Anti-eorruption and anti-bribery matters

The Group hes an established and Robust Anti-Bribery and Corvuption processes and conlrols In place. These are
supported by an intcrnal audit function that has the mandate to peyform annovnced and unannounced inspections and
investigation into any (ransactions occurring al & local, regional or group level.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Trevot M Torringto
Director Director

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Woking,

GU21 6HT

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the period ended 31 August 2022

The Directors present their reporl and the consolidaled financial stalements for the period from 28 July 202] 10 31
Augusl 2022,

Incorporation

The Compeny was incorporated in England and Wales and commenced trading on 28 July 2021,

The conselldated financial stalements have been prepared in aceordance with Internalionat financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS™) and the IFRS Inlerprelations Commitiee (“TFRS ICP) interprefalions as adopled by the UK.

This report should be read in conjunciion with the stralegioc report from page 4. The Group has chosen (n sccordance
with Section 414C (2) of the Compandes Act 2006 to set out in the strategle report the following which the Directors
belleve to be of slrategic importance:

Business review,;

Future development and slralegy;
Principal risk and uncer{ainties; and
Financisl tisk management,

Directoys of the Gropp

The Direclors, who held office during the period, were as follows:
Oliver J Bevan (appointed 28 July 2021)

Ryan Hallworlh (eppointed 28 Jyly 2021)

Ryan D Jervis {Appointed 31 August 2021}

Trevor M Torringlon (Appointed 31 August 2021)

Divyidends

The Board has not recommended a dividend for the reporting period and has no current plan lo do so,
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 Augnst 2022 (continued)

Statement of Mrectors’ Responsibilities

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable Jaw and regulations,

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for esch financial year, Under that law the
Direclors have elected to prepave the financial statements in accordance with UK adopled International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs). Undes company Iaw the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they pive a trus and fair viewy of the state of affaits of the cornpany and of the profit or tass of the
company for thal petiod. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors ave t2quired to;

¢ select suitable accounting policies and apply thent consistently;

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and predent;

= stale whether applicable UK adopted International Financial Reporting Standards (iIFRSs) have been
followed, subject to any materfal departures disclosed and explained in (he finuncial satettients; and

*  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inapproptiate lo presune that the
campany will continue in business.

The Directors arc responsible for keeping adequate accounting records thet are sufficient lo showr end explain the
Group’s and the comipany’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and the company and enable them 1o ensure that the financial statements comply with the Compauies Act
2006. They ere also responsible for safeguarding the nssets of the Group and the gompany acd hence for taking
reasonable stcps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Corporate povernance
The Group has robust Governance and oversight of all aspeots of the business:

»  ‘The Board meet at least six times per annum and are responsible for the overall manegement and direction
of all espects of the Group.

»  TheExccutive Commiltee, which s Chaired by the Chief Executive Officer and includes senior management
from across all aspects of the business, meets monthly and are the primery executive team for the execution
and governance of the day to day ronning of the Group.

*  Quality and Comupliance committee, which is Chaired by the Direstor of Governance and includes senior
operational and function leads directly related to education and care quality, meets monthly and is the senior
oversight of operational qualily and risk.

¢ TPerformance and Commercial Review comunittee, which is Chaired jointly by the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer, meets monthly and is the senlor oversight of the financial and commercial
petformance of the business,

» Independent inspections, in line with the relevant legislation (regulstion 44 of The Children’s Homes
(England) Regulations 2015)) the Group has a rotling programme of independent inspections that repoit into
the Bxecutive committee and above quality commiitee. These provide independent oversight over the quallty
delivery of appropriate and compliant education and care services,



Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Going concern

The Bomd reviews forecasts of the Group®s projesied trading and associated iquidity requirements based o» a range
ol scenarios to ensure it has sulficient cash to meel its operational and financial needs. These forecasts are underpinned
by detailed and embedded forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibilily over bolk the near term
and leng-term iiguidily requivements of the Group, to inform the Direetors decision making on ell key financial
matters, The Directors consider both short lerm and long-term forecasts for the business, ranging fiom rolling three-
month daily liquidity farecasting, anunual budget and periodic intra year reforecastiug processes, and langet ternt 3
year Jong range plans for the Group. Eech of these projects the liquidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

The Group mede a joss before tax of £27.4m for the perlod ended 31 August 2022, this loss in the curreni period {s
driven by the non-cash impairment of goodwill {(see noie 15} of £19.7m and exceptional costs of £7.8m, excluding
these jtems the Growp made 2 1oss of £0.1m and an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group I forecast 1o snake an
operaling profit during the going concern period. The Group penerates sufficient cash to cover its liabilities and surplus
balances are held es cash reserves Lo invest in the Group and support the business in future periods, At 31 August 2022
the Group had debt of £165.0m dus Lo its external lenders and finance lease liabilities of £160.5m. No loans were due
to our shareholders,

These considerations include the availability of committed, but undrawn, debi facilities that are available to the Group
to suppost gencval corporate and working capital purposes. As at 313 Aupust 2022 these avallable but undrawn
tacilitics were £19.7m

‘The Directors assessment of going concern considers three primary arcas:
1. Key fundarnents] busluess factors

The Group’s pritmary business, and majority of the Group's revenues and cashflows, is generated via the provision
of services with specific characteristics (hat are key in considering downside risk:

FProvislon of essenticl servlzer

The group provides essential educatlon and cave services to meet the needs of 4 wide spectrum of young people in
our socisty. The demand for these services has increased over the [ast desade and continues to do 50 across the
country. Certain service areas are slated as a Governmental priovity, hence funding is ringfenced for mauy of the
areas the Group provides,

Diversified payor base with low credit visk across the significont majority of the Group

The majority of the Group’s revenues and cashflows are generated lrom customers thet sre publicly funded. This
Payor includes over 180 Local Authority customers across England, Wales and Scotland. In the majority of case
each LA services and fees are provided on bespoke cammercial terms and paid for separately by each customer,
significantly reducing the customer concentration risk.

Established position as a (risted provider

The Group i5 one of the leading providers of such services in the UK. The Group helds long standing relationships,
often held at both operational and manegement levels, with iis individual customers, The Group has consistently
delivered ghove national benchmurks [or quality service provision and continues to place, as a priotily, the
provision of the highest quality care to meet the needs of everyone it serves,

Strength, depth and experiesice of the Group 's managemen! teant and tfrastrictire

Over many years the Group has developed, and invested In, (he strength and experience of its workforce and
mantagement team. These factors enable the nalionwide provision of our services 1o be managed within & rigorous
risk management framesvork, to respond to visks as fhey arise.

17




Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Going coneern (continued)

Ll

Versaiility of skifls to meet demand changes

The skills embedded in our workforce, and the nature of many of our facillties, are such that e can be
responsive to changes in the needs and demands of the people we care for, thejr funders nnd regulators, This
apility reduces the time taken {o adapt the Group to best address its cote markets.

Cash flove visibillty

The majority of young people in the UK that we care for remain within our services for more than & year, and the
payment valuc and timing for (he related services are largely defined at the outset of each placement, These
factors provide a base for good visibility over core trading performance and the working capital tequirements of
the business, Therehy leading to good levels of cash flow visibility over the near to medivm term.

Assessment of the principal risks and Impact of a severe but plausible downside sceusrlo

In assessing the potential impact of & range of risk factors on the business the Directors have considered the
likely impact on the Group of & range of iisks speaific 1o the relovant business sectar, as well as the compound
impact of risk factors in the broader macro environment that have evalved since the balance sheet date.

In particular, a severe but plavsible downside scenario is considered by the Directoys in cuder to assess the likely
impact of multiple different adverse factars impacting the Group simuylisncously, piving rise to a material
adverse impact on the Group’s profitability and liquidity during the going concern perlad. Fuither deteils can be
found in note 3 of the financial statements

. Consideration of tlie contrallalle action that the Directors can take to mitigate a severe but plausible

tdownside seenario

In response to dovvnside risks the Group has & range of actions, within its control, that it could deploy lo mitigate
the impact. These Inchude but ave not limited ta:

*+  TReductlon In non-essential capita! expenditure, including the capital expenditure on fisture growth projects

»  Adapling or pavsing of services where no demand exists to reduce or halt losses at a patticular facility and
better deploy resources

*  Reduction in certaln arcas of discretionaty spend that would not have any short to medium term adverse
impact on the Group

In aggregate the inclusion of mitigation actions materially increases the level of liquidity and covenant headroom
further, versus the unmitipated scenario

Having considered all of the sbave factors the Directors have concluded there is no material uncertainty on the
Group’s ability to continue &s  going concern for the period from the date of the approval of these financial
statements to 31 August 2024,



Aspris Ioldeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Engagenent yith employees

The Directors recognise that the continued position of the Group in the specialist education, cars and behavioural eare
industry depends on the quelity and inotivation of ils employees. Well trained, engaged and qualily employees are
crucial for the Growp to ensure thal service users receive the best qualily care. The key qualily performance indicators
the Group uses to measure engagement and training aret the employee opinion strvey, employee sickness levels and
compliance with the Group e-learning programme. The Group has low levels of sickness and high [evels of complinnce
with training progremmes, Whilst moniforing these performance Indicators, the Group centinues to yeview its
renuneration system 1o ensure it is fair, transparent, flexible ard provides individual recopnition, Employees have a
personal development plan that is monitored, assessed and modified during the annual appraisal process.

The Group recopnises that good and effective employee communications are particularly important to retaining and
molivating employees, and throughout the business jt is the Divectors’ policy to promote the underslanding by all
empioyees of the Group’s business alms, purpose, pecformance and individual oppottunities for personal and cereer
devetopment, This is achieved through Inlernal publications, presentations on performance and a ‘vaviety of other
approaches appropriate for a particular location. Employees are consulted oh issues through our Active Colleague
Enpagement {* ACE') foruniz. In all these aveas, the Group continues to further invest in resource and IT solutions in
order o deliver a positive experience for all our colleagues,

The Directors believe that it is important o recruit and retain capable and caving staff regardless of their gender,
marilel status, race ov religion. W is the Group’s policy to give fill and fair consideration to applications for
employment from people who are disabled, lo continue wherever possible the employment of and to srrange
appropriate Ireining for, employges who become disabled and to provide equel opportunities for the career
development, frainiog and promotion of disabled employees.

Chavltable Donations

During the period the Group made charitable donation of £50,000. Individual donations were as follows:

Charity £

UNICEF — Ukraine appeal 50,000
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors® Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Streamtined snergy and carbon regorting

In April 2019, the Depariment foy Business, nergy and Industrial Strategy introduced a new reporting regulation
entliled the Streamlined Enerpy and Carbon Reporting Framework (“SECR™), replacing various other reporting
requirements. Osganisations subject to SECR ate required to inolude information rekating to their encrgy usage and
carbon emissions.

The energy used and emissions the period ended 31 August 2022 are as follows:

Emission type Total Caleulated

Yolume Limissions

(IKWh) {Tonnes of

. i CO%)

Scope 1 {direct) 13,814,587 2,954.9

Scope 2 {indirect) . 5,020,739 970.9
Scope 3 {indirect) 26,798 26,8 _

Total 18,862,124 3,952.6

Secope | Emissions (direct) are Emissions from activities owned or controlled by the Group, that release emissions
into the atmosphere, scope { emissians for Aspris Group include amongst othet, combustion in owned boilers and
vehicles,

Scope 1 Emissions (direct) for the period ave as follows!

Lnergy type Definition Total Calculated

Volume Lmissions

(Wh) {Tonnes of

; CO%)

Gias Emissions from combustion of gas 6,407,987 1,169.7

Other Fuels Emissions foom combustion of fuels for stationary 7,153,714 1,532.3

machinery and engines

Transport Emissions from combustion of fuels for transport 252,886 252.9
purposes .

Taotal 13,814,587 29549

Scope 2 Bmissions (indirect) are emissions released inlo the atmosphere associated with the Groups copsumption of
purchased electricity, heat, and cooling. These are indivect emissions that ave a consequence of the Group’s
activities, but which ocewr at sowrces thet the Group does not own or control.
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Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continned)
Strenmlined energy aud earbon reporting (continued)

Scope 2 Emissions (indirect} for the period ave as folloys:

Euergy type Definition Tutal  Crleulated
Yolume Emlisstons
(IKWh) (Tonnes of

CO%)
Eleclricity Emissions from purchased electrleity 5,020,739 970.,9
Total 5,020,739 9709

Scope 3 Emissions (indirect) are crnissions thal are a consequence of the actions of the Group, which ocour at source
which are not classified as scope 2 emissions. Examples of Scope 3 emissions arc business travel by means not
owned ot controlled by the Graup.

Scope 3 Emissions (indivect) for the period ate as follows:

Energy type Definitian Tatal Calcufated
Volumne Emissions
(IXWh) (Tonnes of
CO%)
Employec-owned cers  Brmissions from business travel in rental cavs or 26,798 26.8

employee-owned vehicies where the company is
responsible for purchasing fuel (mandatory)

Teotal 26,798 26.8

Intensity Ratio

The Group monitors an Intensity vatio in the form: of a compatison of emissions to turnover:

Intensity mensure Turnover Tutensity
£m Ratlo!
Tonnes CO% per lolal £m turnover 179.2 22.06
Total T a2 2206
! 10 e/ Turnover £m

Quantification and reporting methodology

‘The Group has taken guidance from the UK Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines (March 2019), the
GHG Reporting Protocel - Corporate Stendard, and from the UK Government GHG Coliversion Factors for
Company Reporting document for caleulat{ng carbon emissions. Energy usage information (gas and electricity) has
been obtained directly from our enerpy suppliers and half-hourly (HH) data, where applicable, for the IH supplies.
For supplies where there were not complete periods energy usage available, flal profile estimation techniques were
used to compiete the periods consumplion, Transport mileage data was obtained from expense claims submitted by
the Group’s cars aed grey fleet. CO% emissions were calculated using the appropriate emission factors 2022 from
(he UK. Governmen! GHG conversion information.
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Aspris Holdco Timited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (cantinued)
Streamlined energy and earbon reporting {eontinued)

Energy efficient aetlon

I the past year the Group has undertaken various energy officiency works across the estate, including the upgrading
of AC systemns, boilots and insulation, The Group have, at a number of sites, cammenced conversion of Qil heating
systems to more efficient LPG sclutions, These focussed works are ongolng alongside general refurbishments
undertaken including LED lighting and genera! sfficiensies.

The Group will continue out offorts through paiticipation in Phase 3 of BSOS (Energy Seving Opportunities Scheme)
to assist in the targeting and reduction of its carbon footprint through continued structured investment in encigy
efficlency progyammes.

Ethical brading

The Group endeavours to purchase goods and services with the leasl environmental impact, Our cfforts for waste
diversion from land(ill, recyciing, colleclon, and segregalion have meant that the Group have diverted 99% of trade
waste away from landfiil. Aspris also recycled 35% of all wade waste generated, and we remain committed to
increasing this percentage of reoycling year on year, with a target of 50% by the end of 2023,

‘We conlinug to be supported in our efforts through the colleclion of recyciable maleriels, the collection and
canversion of our waste cooking oil o diesel, and other initiatives.

Disclospre of information to the auditoy

Each Director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor is aware of that information, The Directors
confirm that there Is ne velevant information that they know of and of which they know the auditor is unaware,

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Trevor M Torribgtpn
Director

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Woking.

GU21 6HT

21 dMarch 2023
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Aspris Holdco Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OFASFRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
Opinion on the financlpl statements
In our oplnion:

+ ihe financlal statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's
affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of the Gioup’s loss for le period then ended;

¢ the Group financial statements have heen propetly prepared in accordance with UK adopied internations]
accounting slandards;

»  the Parentt Company financial statements have been propecly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

¢ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

We have audited the financial statements of Aspris Holdco Limited (“the Pavent Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group®) for the period ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the Consolidaled Income Statement, Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Tncome, Consolidated Statement of Financlal Pasition, Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equlty, Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows, Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financia! statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting (ramework thal has bzen applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK
adopted international aecounting standerds, and as vegards the Parent Company financial statements, as applied in
accordence with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for epinton

‘We conducted our audit In accordance with Intevnational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and spplicable law,
Jur responsibiiities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audil of the
finencial statements sectlon of our report. We believe thet the audit evidence we have oblained is sulficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independernce

We arz independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accorddnice with the ethical requirements that ave relevant
to our audit of the financial statemments in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfitled our
ather cthlesl responsibilities in eccordaiice withs these requirements.

Conclusions relating to geing concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directars’ use of the going concern basis of pecounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the werk we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
condilions that, Individually or collectively, may cast significent doubt on the Group or Psrent Company’s abilily to
continue a8 a going concern for e period of at least twetve months from when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OIF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINULED)
Other information
The Directors are vespousible far the other information. The other informetion comprises the informaticn Included in
the Aunual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s repott theveon. Our opinion on the financial
statements dloes not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our repott, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thercon.
Our responsibility is to read the otherinformation and, in doing so, consider whether lhe other information is materialty
Inconsistent with the financial statements ov our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated, If we ldentify such materlal inconsistencies or epparsnt mgterial misstalements, e are
required to delermine whether this gives tise to a material misstatement in the finanelal statements themselves. Tf;
based on the work we have performed, vve conelude that theve is a material misstalement of this ather information, we
are required to repout that fac,
‘We heve nothing to report in this regard.
Other Companles Act 2006 roporting

In out opinion, based on the wolk undertaken in the course of the audii:

« the information given in the Strategic report and (he Directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepered is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the Strategic report and the Directols’ repost have becn prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Pareat Comtpany and its environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not (dentified material misstaternents in the Strategic report or the Directors’ veport,

We have nothing 1o report in respect of the following malters in relatlon to which the Companies Act 2006 requives us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

*  ndequate acrounting vecords have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

+  the Parent Company financial stalements are not in agresment with the accounting records and retuins; or

s certain disclosures of Directors® remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» yve have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsibllitles of Directors
As exphined more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the Divectors are responsible for the
preparation of the finencial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and falr view, and for such internal

control as the Divectors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financiel statements that are fiee from
material misstatement, whether due to frand ok error,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REFORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

io preparing e financial stalemenls, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Parent Company’s
abilily lo continuc as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related (o poing concérn and using the going
concern basis of accounfing unless the Ditectoss cither intend to liquidate the Group ov the Parent Company or to
cease operalions, or have no reafistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilitics for the nudit of the flnancial statements

Our objectives ave to oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements as a whole are fres from
material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or emor, and to issue an auditor’s repart that includes our opinian.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bul is not & guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatemends can arise from fraud or etror and
are considered malerial if, individvally or in the aggregate, lhey could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

Extent fa whilch rhe audit was capable of detecting irregnlarities, including fraud

Inegularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with iaws end regufations, We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, lo detect material misstatements [n respect of {rregularities, including
fraud, The extent lo which onr procedures are capable of detecling irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

‘We have identified and assessed the polentia! risks refaled to itregularities, including fraud, by considering the
fallowing:

o the nature of the industry, including the design of the Group's remuneration policies;

o enquiries of management regarding; compliance with laws and regulations; the detection and
response lo the tisk of fraud aid any knowledge of sctual, suspecled or alleged fraud; and the
coniros in place {0 miligate visks related fo fraud or non-compiiance with laws and regulations.

o abfaining an undevstanding of the legal and regulatory framework in which the Group operates,
including employment law, and Health and Safety requirements,

o performing procedures to verify the existence of revenues, and consider the risks around the
fraudulent recognition of amounts,

We have responded to risks identified by performing procedures including the following:
o enquity of management concerning actusl and potential litigation and claims;

o reviewing the financial statement disclosures end tesling to supporting documentation 1o assess
compliance with relevant laws and regulations;

o performing anslytical procedures to identify any unusuel or unexpecied relationships which may
indicate risks of misstatement due to fraud; and

o reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance identify any instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations.

We have alyo considered the risk of [raud through menagement override of controls by:

o sample testing the approptlaleness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessing whether the
judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating
the business rationale of any sighificant transactions that are unusoal ar outside the normal course
of business;
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INDEFENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
{CONTINUED)

o discussing among the engagement team how and where fraud might oceur in the financial statements
and any potential indicstors of fraud. As part of this discussion, we considered potential for fraud
in revenue recognition, specifically in relation to revenue exislence, as well as the potential for
management override of controls specifically in relation to the posting of journal adjustments and
the inappropriate use of estimates.

o in addressing the risk for fraud in revenue vecogaition, testing the appropriatencss of the revenue
recognition policies and the application of these policies and performing specific procedures over
the existence and cut-off of revenue; and

o discussing with management and those charged with governance whether they are sware of any
frauds, or non-compliance with laws end regulations, during the peried.

Cur audit procedures were designed to respond to 1isks of material misstatement in the financial statements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting & materia! misstalement duc to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting
one restlting from etror, as fraud may involve dellberate coneealment by, for cxample, forgery, miavepresentalions or
through collusion. There are inherent limitations in the avdit procedures performed and the further removed non-
compliance with [aws and regurlations is from the cvents and transactions veflected in the financial statements, the less
likely we aze to become aware of if.

A further description of our tesponsibilities is available on the Financial Repoiting Council’s websile at:
hitps:/Avnw, fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditer’s report.

Use of oy yeport

This report is made sololy to the Parznt Company’s members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been underlaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s
members those matters we are vequired to state to them in an auditor*s report and for no other purpose, To (he fullest
extent perrnitted by lavy, we do not seeept or assune responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the
Parent Company’s members as a body, for our sudit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

DocuSigned by:

Paud. Etlringfon.

E10CCSCF40ABACCT...

Paul Etherington BSc FCA CF {Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statulory Auditor
Reading, UK.

22 March 2023

BDO LLYP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Consolidated Income statement for the period ended 31 August 2022

Note 2022

£1n

Revenue 4 179.2

Operating cosls (156.1)

Exceptional ilemis Y (78)

Impaiinent loss 15 (1973

Other losses 8 (1L3)
Operating loss ;__ 4.7 )

Wet finance costs g (22.7)
Loss before taxation :W

Income tax 11 03
Loss attributable to the owness of the Group e @T)_
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period to
31 Aupgust 2022

2022

£m

Loss for the period {27.1)
Total compreliensive iucome for ilie period _ 271

28
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Aspris Heldeo Limited
Registration Number: 13534635

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Note 2022
: £m
Agssefs
Non-eurrent assets
Property, plant and equipient 12 158.1
Right of use assets 13 156.4
Intanglble assets 14 B 1434
457.9
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 18 24.5
Cash and cash equivalent 19 18.1_
42,6
Total assets S00.5
Cuvrent liabilities
Lease liabililies 13 5.1
Trade and other payables 24 (21.5)
Incorne fax liability (0.9}
Deferved income 20 (28.8)
(56.3)
Net current liabilitles (13.7)
Non-cureent liabilitles
Lease lighilities 13 (155.4)
Laans and borrowings 22 {159.6)
Provisions 23 (1.0)
Deferred tax liabilities 26 (36.2)
(352.2)
Net assets 52.0
Share capital 21 846
Share premium 34.5
Accumuliated [osses (27.1)
Total equity 92,0

Approved by the Board and signed on lis behalf by:

21 Mavch 2023
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The noles on pages 34 lo 73 form an integral pait of these financial statements.




Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended

August 2022
Shave capital Share Retaiued Tetal equity
Premium Earnings
Loss for the perlod B 27.5 27.1)
Total comprehensive Mcome 27.1) (27.1)
New share eapital subsorihed 84.6 34.5 - _ Had
At3L Aupust2022 84.6 345 (27.1) 92,8
30

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.



Aspris Holdeo Limited
Reglstration Number; 13534635

Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Nate 201
m
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidlaries 16 119.1
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 18 0.2
Cash and cash equivalent 19 _ 0.7
09
Taotul assets 120.0
Current Mabilities
Trade and other payables 24 0.9
Net current assets/(linbllities) -
Net nssets 119.1
Share capital 2] 8.6
Share premium 34.5
Total equity 119.1

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by Section 408 of the Compantes Act 2006 fromm
prosenting its own profit and loss account, The Company’s Joss for the year was £19,000.

Approved by the Board and signed en its behalf by:

Trevar M Torringlo
Director

Director

21 March 2023

31
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended August 2022

Share eapital Share Retained  Tota) cquity
Premium Larnings
Loss for the period - -
Total compreliensive Income - -
Rew share capital subseribed 84.6 345 - Hag
At 31 Augusf 2022 _ 84.6 34.5 - 119.1
|
1
|
|
!
1
!
\'
i
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The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.



Aspris Holdeo Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Period ended 31 August 2022

MNote 2022
fm
Cash flows frowm operating activities
F.oss for the peciod 27.53
Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amorlisation 6 137
Depreciation on tight of use assets 6 8.5
Impatrment of goodwwiil 15 19.7
Loss on disposa! of property plant and equipment 8 093
Finance income 9 (0.1)
Finance costs 9 22.8
Share of loss of equity acconnted investees 0.5
Income tax 1l 0.3
38.0
Woriking capital adjustments
Increese in trade and other receivables (5.4)
Inorease in trade gnd other payables 4,1
Increase in provisions 02
Decrease in deferred income (0.1)
Cash generated from operations 358
Income taxes paid (1.6)
Net cash flow from operating activities 34.2
Cashi flows from investing activitles
Inlerest received 9 0.1
Arquisilions of property plant and cquipment 12 {12.1}
Proceeds fiom sale of property plant and equipment 1.0
Advances of loans to joinl ventures 16 (L.1)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - net of cash acquired 17 {123.7)
{135.8)
Cash flows from Ananeing activities
Interest paid (11.3)
Praceeds from issue of ardinary shares 115.1
Proceeds from external bosrowlng draw dewns 158.6
Repayment of external borrowing (41.3}
Repayment of loans advanced from former parent 17 (90,1)
Principal paid on lease liabilities i3 (4.8)
Interest paid on lease liabilities 13 (10.5)
115.7
Net incrense in, and closing eash and cash equivaleuts 19 18.1

13

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an inlegral part of these financia! stetemnents,




Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

1. General information

The cotnpany is & private compaiy Jiinited by sharc capital, incorparated in Evgland and Wales and damiciled in
United Kingdom, regisiration aumber 13534635, Aspris Holdco Limited Group includes the Aspris Children’s
Services Abu Dhabi Branch.

These financial stalements were authorised for issue by the Board on 17 March 2023
2. Accounting policles
Siatement of compliance

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporfing Standavds
and its interprelations adopted by the UK ("UK adopied IFRSs").

Summary of significant accounting policies and key estimates

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial staterments are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparatien

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance vith UK adopted international accounting
standatds in conformity with the requirements of the companies act 2006 a3 applicable to companies using TIFRS.
The Company has elected ta prepare its parent Company financial statements in accordance with UK generally
accepted ascounting principles (UK GAAT), including FRS 101

‘The {inancial statements have been prepared under historical vost accounting rules.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and
elected not to present its own Statement of Comprehensive Income in these financial statsments.

Going eoncern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requiremients based on a vange of scenarios to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operational and financial needs. These forecasts are underpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the neat term and lonp-term liguldity
requivements af the Group, to inform the Directors® decision making on all key financial matters. The Directors
consider both short tevrs and fong-term forecasts for the business, ranging fiom rolling three-monih daily liquidity
forecasting, annual budget and periadic intra year reforecasting processes, and longey term 3 year long range plans
for the Group. Each of these prajects the liquidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

The Group made a loss before tax of £27.4m for the period ended 31 August 2022, this loss in the current period
reflects the non-cash impairment of poodwill {(see note 15) o[£19.7m and exceplional of £7.8m, excluding these
items the group made a loss of £0.1m and an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group is forecast to make an operating
profit during the going concern perlod. The Group generates sufficient cash to cover its liebilities and surplus
balances ave held as cash reserves to fuvest in the Group and support the business in future periods, At 31 August
2022 the Group had debt of £165.0m due to its external lenders and finance lease I{abilities of £160.5m. No {oans
were due to our shareholders.

As part of thely considerations the Divectors review a range of different scenatios, including a severe but plausible
downside scenarlo to assess the impact on both the liquidily and covenant headraom of the Group, see note 3.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Angust 2022
(continued)

Basls of censolidntion

‘The Group financial slalements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidlary underakings
drawn up (o 31 August 2022,

A subsidiary is an enlity controlled by the Company. Contral is achieved where the Compauy has the power to
govern the financlal and operating polictes of an entity so as to obtain henefits fram its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the incone slatement fiom the
effective date of acquisition or up (o the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessaty, adjustments are
made to the financlal statements of subsidiaries to biing their accounting policies inte line with those used by the
Group.

The purchase method of aceounting is used to acrount for business combinations that result in the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group, The cost of & business combination is measured as the fair value of the assels given,
equity instruments issued and liabllities incurred or assumed al the date of exchange, plus costs directly attiibutable
to the business combination, Identifiable assets acquired and liabililies and conlingent (iabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values al the acquisition date. Any excess of the cost of 1hie
business combination aver the acquiter’s inlerest in the nel fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised is recorded as goodwill,

Inter-company transactions, balances and unreaiised gains on transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries, which are related patlics, are eliminated in full,

Intra-group losses are also eliminated but may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated
financial stalements,

Changes in secounting policy
The following smendments are effective for the period beginning 28 July 2021:
s Amendiments (o IFRS [7 Insurance Contracts

None of the standards, interpretations and amendments effective for the fivst time from 28 Jyly 2021 have had a
material effect on the finencial statements,

The fallowiig new standards, interprotations and amendments ace tiot yet effect:

Amendinent 1o 1AS 1 “Classification of Lisbilities as Current or Non-current
Amendments to TFRS 3 “Definition of a business”
1AS 16: PPE: Proceeds before Intended use
TAS 37: Onerous cottracts — cost of flfilling a contract
Annual improvement cycle to IFRS (2018-2020 Cycle}
o IFRS 1: Subsidiary as a first time adopler
o IFRS 9: fees in the *10 per cent’ (est for derecognition of finapcial liabilities
o [FRS 16! Lease incentives amended example
s IAS 8: Definition of accounting estimates
« 1AS b Disclosure initiative — accounting policies
*  Amendments lo IAS 12 “Deferred tax relatlng 1o assets and liabilities arising from a single transaciion®

- e

None of the standards, interpretations and amendments which are effective for periods beginning after 28 July 2021
and which hnve not beer adopled early, arc expected to have a materiat effect on the financial statements,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Revenue Recogndtion
Recognition

Revenue s recognised based upon the number of people per day to which we have provided a service. These volume
metrics are recorded and combined with the applicable fee rate per person per service, to derive the tatal revenue to
be recogaised, There is limited judgementat input this process

Revenne is recognised as performance abligations are satisfied as conlrol of services {s transfeired 1o (he customer.
The Group has determined that most of its perfoiTnance obligetions are satisfied over time as the client
simultanecusly received and consumes the benefits provided by the Grovp as the educatlon or care services ave
rendered, In the circumstances, revenue is vecognised at the amount which the Group has the right to invoice, where
that amount corvesponds ditectly with the value ta the customer of the Group’s parforimance completed to date.

The principles in IFRS ave applicd to revenue recognition criteria using the following 5 step model:

1. Tdentify the contracts with the customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the ransaction price

4, Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations i the contiact
5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its performance oblipations

Fee arrangements

Below are details of fee ayrangements and how these ave measured and recognised, for yevenue from the provision of
services: ’

Aspris delivers special education and cars services to its service users in line with contractual agreements, which
clearly slate the nature of the services to be provided over what time period, The main performance cbligations in
coniracts consist of delivery of services to service users, For all contracts the stage of completion and deltvery of
performance pbligations are measured ut the balance sheet date by reference to services delivered to service users at
that date,

Transaction price

To calculate the transaction price of contracts retes ave applied daily or by specific service provided to service users
as detailed in contractual agreements,

Paymreni terms

Payment terms range from payment in advance of services delivered to within a range of specified days of receipt of
service or invotce, dependant on the specific clecumstances and needs of the service users.

Tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current tax, Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except that a change
atteibutable (o an item of fncome or expense recognised as other comprehensive income is also recognised divectly in
other comptehensive income,

The current income lax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have beep enacted or
substautively enacted by the reporting date in the countrics where the Group operates and generates taxable income.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plont and cquipmenl is stated in the statemenl of financial position at cosy, Jess sy subsequent
accunwlaled depreciation aud subsequent eccunulated impaivment losses.

‘The cost of property, plant snd equipment includes directly attvibulable incremental costs inourred In their
acquisition and inslallation,

Depreciation

Depreociation is charged so ss 1o write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under consteuction over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Asset class - Years depreciated over

Frechold buildings 50 yests

Leesehold buildings The lease term

Fixtues and fittings 3 to 16 years

Motor vehicles The short of the lease tern or 4 years
Intangible assets

Goodwill arising on the acquisitlen of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
interest in (he net fair value of the idenlifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the enlity recognised at
the date of acquisition, Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less
any sccumulated impairment fosses. Goodwill is held in the currency of the acquired entity and revalued to the
closing rate at each reporting period date.

Goodwlll is not subject to amortisation but is tesled for impaliment on at least an annual basis, The impairment test
compares the recoverable value of & cash generaling unit (‘CGU’), the value in use of thal CGU and the cartying
value of the intangible asset in acoordance with JAS36, This assessment faclors in the latest developments within
cach CGU, including amongst other factors, curreat trading, capacity and staffing consitaints (o assess an estimation
of the future cashflows and the determination of a discount rate in order lo caleulate the present valug of those cash
flows,

Negalive gondwill arlsing on an acquisition is secognised directly in the incame statement. On disposal of &
subsidiary or a joinily controlied entity, the attributable amount of goodwifi is included in the determination of the
profit or loss recognised in the income stalement on disposal,

Sepanately acquired trademarks and licences ave shotvn at historical cost.

Trademarks, licences (including software) and customer-related intangible assels acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
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Aspris Holdeo Timited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Amortisation

Amortisation is provided on intangible asscts so as to write off the cost, lass any estimated residual value, over their
expeeted usetul economic (ife as follows:

Asset class Years anortised over
Cuslomer contracts 6to 17 years

The amortisation periods arc based on expeeted customer churn rates and, wheye relevant, the length of fixed-term
custometr contracls

VYaluation of investmenis

Investments in subsidiaries held by the company arc measured at cost less any accumulated impairment in (he
company’s siatemont of financial position,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid invesiments
fhat are readily convertibic to & known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the otdinary couvse of busincss. If
collection is expected in one year ar fess (or in the normal operaling ¢ycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets, If not, they are presented us non-current 85seis.

Trade receivables are recognised nitially at the transaction price. They ure subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for the impairment of frade
receivables is established swhen there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
accarding to the original terms of the receivables,

Trade payables

Trade peyables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
busingss from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabiiities if payment is duc within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current lisbilities,

Trade payebles are recagiiised initlally at the transeetion price and subsequently measured at amartised cost using
the effective interest method.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
- (vontinued)

Borrowlngs

All borrowings are inllialty recorded af the fair value which is uften the amount received, net of (ransaction costs,
Borrowings are subsequently earied at amortised cosl, with the difference belween the praceeds, nel of transaction
costs, and the amount due en redemplion being recopnised as a charge to the income statement over the peviod of the
relevant borrowing.

Interest cxpense is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in finance costs.

Botrowings are olassified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right fo defer setilement of the
liability for al least 12 months afler the reporting dale.

Deferred tax

Deterred tax is recognised on temporary differences belween the carrying ameurnts of assets and Yabilities in the
consolidated finanolal statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Dreferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all 1axable temporary differences. Deferred tax assels are
generally recognised for afl deductible tempovary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profils will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assels and
[abilities ate not recognised if tho temporary differcnce arises from the initial recognilion (other than {n & business
combination} of assets and liabilities in & transaction that affects neither the texable profit nor the accounting profit.
tn addition, deferred tax liabilities ere not recognised if {lie temporary difference arises from the initial recoghition
of goodwill,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable lemporary differences assoctated with investments in subsidiavies
and associates, and intercsts in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is ptobable that the temporaty difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future, Deferred tax
agsels arising from deductible temperary differences assaciated with such invesiments and interests are only
recognised to the exien| that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the tempotary differences and they are expecied to veverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount ol deferved tax nssets is reviewed al the end of each repoiting peried and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be nvaileble to elfow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and essets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is setiled or the asset realised, based on tax rales (and tux laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reperting period.

The megsurement of defetred tax liabilities and assets reflects the (ax consequences that would follow fiom the
mannet in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting perod, o recaver or settle the carcying amaunl of its
assets and {fabililies.

39




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Exceptional iteins

Ttems that are both material and non- reoecuriing and whose significance is suffieient to yvarrant sepavate disclasece
and identificatlon within the consolidated financial information are referred to as exceptional items, [terns thut mey
give rise o cinssification ag exceptional include but are note fimited to, significant and material recrganisation and
restructuring programmes, re-finanelng and acquisition costs, Further details of exceptional items can be found in
note 10.

Provisians

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constiuctive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to sctfle that obligation and & reliable estimate can bie made of the
ameunt of the cbligation.

Frovisions ave measured at the Divectors’ best estimate of the expenditure required lo settle the obligation at the
reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s material,

T.eases
Defimition

A lease is a contract, or @ part of a contyact, that conveys the vight to use an assel oy a physically distinct pait of an
asset (“the underlying asset™ for a period of time jn exchange for considecation. Further, the contract must convey
the right to the Group to control the assel or u physically distinct portion theteof. A confract is deemed to convey the
right to control the undeilying asset if, throughout the period of usc, the Group has the right to:

*  {btain substantially all the economic benefiis from the use of the underlying asset, and;
s Direct the use of the underlying asset {c.g, direct how and for what purpose the asset is used)

Tuitial recognition and measurement

‘The Group initially recognises a lease liabiiity for the oblipation to make lease payments and a right-of-use asset for
the right to use the underlying asset for the lease term,

The lease liability 1s measured at the present valye of the lease payments to be made over the lease term, with the
discount rate determlned by refercnce to the rale inherent in the Jease unless {as is iypically the case) this is not
rveadily determinable, in which ease {he Group’s incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used.
The lease payments Include fixed paytments, purchase options et exergise price (where payment is reasonably
certain), expected amount of residual value puarantecs, termination option penaltics (where payment is considered
reasonably certain) and variable lease puyments that depend on an index or rate. [n such cases, the initial
measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable efement will remain unchanged throughout the lease term.
Other vatiable Jease payments are expensed in the period to which they refate.

The right-of-use asset is initinlly measured at the amount of the Jease liability, adjusted for leasc prepayments, lease
incentives recelved, the Group®s Initial divect costs {e.g. commissions) and an estimate of restoration, removal and
dismantling costs.

Subrequant measurenernt

After the cornmencement date, the Group meastires the lease linhility by:

(m) Tncreasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease 1iability;

(b) Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

() Re-measuring the carying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in
substance fixed lease payments or on the ocourrence of other specific events.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Leases (continued)

[ntcrest on the lease Lability in each perlod during the leasc term is the amount that produces a constant periodic rale
of interest on the remaining balance of the lexse liability. Tnterest charges are presenled sepavately as non-operating
costs, included in finance cost, in the Income stalement, unless the costs are inciuded in the carrying amount of
another asset applying other applicable standards.

Variable lease payments nct ingluded in the measurement of the lease liability, ere included In aperating expenses in
the peried in which the event or condition that triggers them mises.

The related right-of-use essel is accounted for using the Cost model in IAS 16 end depreciated and charged in
accordance with the depreciation requirements of TAS 14 Property, Plant and Eguipment as disclosed in the
accounting policy for Property, plant and equipment. Adjustments are made to the canying value of the righl of use
asset where the lease liability s re-measured in accordance with the above, Right of use assets ave tested for
impainment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairmett of assets as disclosed in the accounting policy in impairment,

Lease modifications

If u fease is modificd, the modified coniracl is evaluated to determine whether it is or contalng & Jease. If a lease
continues {o ¢xist, the lease modification will result in cither a separate [ease or a change in the aceounting for the
existing lease.

The modification is accounted for as & separate [ease if both:

(a) The modification increases the scope of lhe lease by adding the right 1o use one or more underlying assets; and
(b) The consideration for the lease Increases by an amount commensurale with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scape and any appropriate sdjusiments jo thaf stand-alone price (o reflect the circumstances of the particutar
conlract.

1f both of these conditions are inet, the lease modification results in two separate Jeases, the unmodified originat
lease and & separate lease, The Group flien accounts for lhese in line with the accounting policy for new leases.

If either of the conditions are not met, the inodified lease is not accounted for as a separate lease and the
consideration is allocated to the contract and the lease lizbility is re-measured using the lease term of the modified
lease and the discount ieie as determined at the effective date of the modification.

For a imodification that fully or parilally decreases the scope of the lease (e, reduces (he square footage of leased
space), IFRS 16 tequires a lessee to decrease the carrying amaurt of the tight-of-use asset to reflect partial or full
termination of the lease. Any difference between those adjustments js recognised in profit or loss at the effective
dale of the madification.

Fot all other leass modificaiions which ave not accounted for as a separate lease, IFRS 16 requires the fessee to
recognise the amount of the re-measurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the corresponding right-of-use
asset wilhout affecting profit or loss,

Short term and fow vaive leases

The Group has made an accounting policy election, by class of underlying asset, not to recognise lease assets and
lense liahilities for leases with & lease letm of 12 months ov less (i.e. short-term leases).

The Group has made an accounting policy eleclion on a lease-by-lease basis, nol to recognise lease assets on leases
for which the underlying asset is of low value.

Lease payments on short texm and low value leases ave accounted for on a straight line bases over the term of the
lease or other syslematic basis if considered more appropuisle. Short term and low value fease payments are included
in operating expenses in the income slatement.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Share capltal

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity Instruments are measuced at the fair valuc of the cash oy other
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred and
the time value of money is matexial, the initial measurement is oo a prosent valug basis.

Defined contribution pension obligation

A defined contribution plen is & pension plan under which fixed contributions are paid into a separate entity and has
no legal or construclive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to empioyee service [n the current and prier periods.

TFinancial instruments
Initial recopnition

Financial assets and financial liabiiitics comprise all assets and liabilities reflected in the statement of financial
position, excluding properly, plant and cquipment, intangible assets, deferred tax assets, prepayments and deferred
tax linbilities.

The Group recognises financial assets and financiai liabilities in the statement of financial position when, and anly
when, the Group becomes party to the contractual pravisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assels are initially recoghiscd at fair value, Financia! liabilities aie initially recognised at fair value,
representing the proceeds reccived nel of premiums, discounts and fransaction costs that are divectly attributable to
the financial liability.

Purchases or sales of a financial assets under a contract whaose terms require delivery of the asset within the time
frame established gencrally by regulation or convention in the maketplace concerned ave defined as a repular way
purchase or sale, All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets and financial abilities classified as fair
value through profit or loss (“FYTPL") are recognised on the trade date, Le, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the financial assets or financial liabilities. All regular way purchases and sales of other finangial
assels and financial lHabililies are recognised on the settloment date, i.e, the date on which the asset or lability s
veceived from or delivered to the counterparty. Regnlar way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery within the time frame generally established by reputation or convention in the
marketplace,

Subsgquent to Initial measurement, financia) assets and financial fiabilities re measvred at either amortised cost or
fair value.

Classification and measurement

Financial insttuments arc classified at inception inte one of the following categories, which then determine the
subsequent measurement methodology: -

Financial assets ave classified into one of the following categories:-
»  financial ussets at amaitised cost;
+  financial asseis at fair value through the profit or loss (FYTPL); or
Financlal liabilities are classified into one of the following twa categories: -
+  financial labilities at amortised cost; or
« financial liabilitiss at fair value through the profif or loss (FVTPL).
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Finaueial instrmments {continwed)

The ciassification and the basis for measurement are subject to the Group’s business modef for managing the
financial essets and the contractoal cash flow characteristics of the financial assets, as delailed betovv:-

Fingneial assets at amorised cosi

A financisl nsset s measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not desighated as at
FYTPL:

e the assels are held within a business model whose abjective is fo hold assets in order to collec! conlractual
cash flows; and

+  the contractual erms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash fows that are solely
payments of principal and interesl on {he principal amount cutstanding.

If sither of the above two erileria is not met, the financial assets are classified and measured at fair value through the
profit or loss (FYTPL),

If g financial zsset meels the amortised cost criteria, the Group may choose to designate the financial asset al
FVTPL, Such an election is irrevocable and applicable only if the FYTPL classification significantly reduces a
meassirement or recognition inconsistency.

Financial assefs at fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL}
Financial assets not othervise clagsified above are classified and messured as FVTPL.

Financial llabilities at amortised cost ]
All financial liabilities, ather than those classified as finencial liabilities al FYTPL, are measured at amortised cost
using the effective inlerest rate method.

Financial labilities at fair value throngh the prof¥ or loss
Financial llabilities not measured at amortised cost ave classified and imeasured at FYTPL. This classification includes
derivative liabilities.

Desecognition

Financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset when;

s the contraclual rights to the cash flovs from the financial asset expire,

s it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows in a fransaction in whieh substantially ali of the
risks and rewnrds of ownership of the financial assel are transferced; or

» the Group neither transfers nor relains substantially ell of the risks and rewsrds of ownership and it does
not retaln control of the financial asscl,

On derecognition of a financial assel, the difference belween the carrying amount of the asset and the sum of the
consideratlon received is recognised as a guin or loss in the profit or toss.

Any cumulative gain or loss recogaised in OCI in respect of equity investment securities desighated as FVTOC! is

not recognised in profil or loss on derecopnilion of such securitics. Any interest in transferred financial assels that
qualify for derecognition that is crealed or relained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
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Financinl lustraments (continaed)

‘The Group enlers into transactions whereby it ransfers assets recognised on ils statement of financial position, but
retains either all o substantially all of risks and rewards of the transferred assets o a portion of them. In such cases,
the transferred assets are not derecognised.

When the Group derecognises transferred financial essets in their entirety, but has continuing invelvement in them
then the entily should disclose for each type of continuing involvement at the reporting date:

(a) The carrying amount of the assels and liabilitics that are recognised in the entity’s statement of
financial position and represent the enlity’s continuing involvement in the derecognised fnancial
assets, and the fine items in which those assets and Labilifies are recognised.

(b) The fair value of the assets and liabilities that represent the entity’s continuing invoivement in the
derecognised financial assets;

(¢) The amount thal best represents the entily’s maximum expasure to loss from its continuing
involvement in the derecognised financial assets, and how the maximum exposurs to loss is
determined

(d) The undiscounted cash outflows thal would or may be requived to repurchase the derecoghised

financial assels or other amounts payable 1o the transferee for the transferred assets

Financial Nabilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contraciual obligations are discharged, cancelled, or expive.

Impairment of financlal assels
Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credif losses (ECL) on financia! instruments that ave 1ot
measured at F VTPL, namely trade and other recelvables,

Provisions for credit-impairment ave recognised in the statement of income and ave reflected in accumulated
provision halances against each rclevant financial instruments balance.

Evidence that the financial asset is credit-impaired include the following;

»  Significan! financial difficulties of the berrosver or issuer;

» A breach af contract such as default or past due svent;

+  The restructuring of the loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

» Itig becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or

e There is other observable data relating to a group of assets such as advetse changes in the payment status of
borrowers or issuers in the Group, or econoimnic conditions that correlate with defaults in the Group,

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach, which reguires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables,

Trade receivables are not subject to material ar significant credit losses. Credit risk js not constdered to be significant
given that aver 90% of revenuc is derdved from publicly funded entities.
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Flugneial jnstrunients (continued)

Financial instruments -- Riskk manageineat

The Group is exposed 1o financial risks In the form of credis, interest and liquidity risks which arise in the normal
course of business, The primary financlal risks that the Group is oxposed (0 sre noled below, for further defai) on these
financial risks please see note 27,

The principal financial instruments used by the Group, from which financla) Instrument risk arises, are as follows:

+  Tradereceivables

s Cash depasits

s Senior and revolying credit facilities conlaining a variable element linked to Sterling Overnight lndex
Average

Capital Management
The Group’s objeotive when managing its capital is to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a

going concern whilsl maximising returns for stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity please see note
27 for the Group’s capltal siructure.
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3, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation

The preparation of the financial statemends requives management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of certain finencial assets, linbilities, income and expenses.

The use of estimates and assumptions is principally limiled to the determination of provisions for impaioment and
the valuation of financial instruments as explained in more detail below:

Provisions for lmpaipmen

In determining mpeirment of financial assets, judgement is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows as well as an assessment of whether the credit risk on the financia! asset has increased significantly
since initiat recognition and incorporation of forward-looking information in the measurement of BCL.

Fair value of financlal assets and liabilities

Where the fair value of financial assets und lisbilities cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined
usitig a varlety of valuation technigues that include the use of mathematical models, The inpul to these models is
devived from observable markels where available, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement Is required In
determining assumptions used in the models. Changes in assumptions used in the models could affect the reperted
fair vatue of financla! assets and liabilities.

Going Concern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group®s liquidity requirements based on a tange of seenarlos to ensure it has
sufficient cash to nioel operational and financial needs. These forecasts are underpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processes and procedutes 1o provide granular visibility over both (he near tevm and long term Liquidily
requivements of the Group, to Inform the Diteclors decision making on all key financial matters. The Directors
consider both short term and long teum forecasts for the business, ranging fiom rolling thiee month daily liquidity
forecasting, anhual budget and peviodic inlra year reforecasting processes, and longer tern1 3 year long range plans
for the Group. Bach of these prajects the liquidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

There ave necessary estimates and judgements in the directors’ assessment of going concern these are considered in
detail in the strategic report.

In assessing the potential impect of & range of risk factors on ths business the Diveelors have considered the likely
impact on the Group of a range of risks specific fo the relevant business sector, e well as the compound impsact of
risk factors in the broader macre environment that have evolved since the balance sheet dete.

In particulas, a stvere but plausible downside scenario is considered by the Directers in order to zssess the likely
impact of multiple different adverss factors impecting the Group simultancously, giving vise lo a material adverse
impact on the Group's profitability and liquidity during the going concem period. Specifically, the sovere but
plausible downside scenario assumes:

*  Reduction in ocoupancy levels from base forecasts of an agpregate of approximately 2% for the going
concern period.

* Costinflation:

o Wage inflation - additional site-wide wage inflation of 1.0% beyond the Group's planned wage
increases (which already reflect announced Naticnal Living Wage, Teacher’s Pay Scale, and
other internal increases}

o Non-Wage inflation - additional 1.0% cost inflation assumed beyond the Group’s base case,
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Critleal accounthg judgements and ey sources of estineation (continued)

« Fee Inflation — over and above the cost impacts the scenario considers a material shorfall in the
proportion of fee increases that can be successfully achieved.

» Inlerest rate increases — nssumes a marked and sustalned increase in interest rates, ant therefore the cash
ffows required o service the Group’s debl. The scenario factors in Bank of England Base rates exceeding
5% by May 2023 and helding «t this level for the remaining going concern period.

We do not consider that COVID-19 will have 2 materia! impact on the cashflows of the Group in the going concern
period.

The revenuc and cos! Impact of such a scenario yould have a major negalive Impact on the Group’s profitsbility for
the geing concern period. With operating profit being adversely impacted by approximately 30% in the period.
Furthermore, in adopting a prudent appeaach, the Directors have considered this scenario before relovanl mitigalting
actions that the business could implement to limit the adverse impact, Before the inclusion of such mitigations the
Group centinues to forecast sufficient liquidity and financial covenant headroom.

Business Combinations

The Group undertaok three business combinations during the period (note 17}, In accordence wilh IFRS, the
purchase meihod of accounting has been used. The Directors determine and allocate the purchase price of acquired
businesses at the dale of the business combination, The purchase method requires significant estimales and
judgments.

While Directors use thefr besl estimates and sssumptions as part of (he purchase price allocation process to
accurately value assels acquired and lisbilities assumed at the date of acquisition, estimates and assumplions arc
inherently uncerlain and subject to refinement. Examples of aritical estimates in valuing certain assets we have
acquired include;

»  future expecled cashflows arising from assets and liabilities,
» the fair value of tntangible and tangible assets, and
«  discount rates,

Useful Economic lifc of intangible assets

The Directors have determined the usefu) econotnie life of cettnin intangible agsets acquired as part of business
conibinatlon. The amortisation perlods are based on expected customer churn rates and, wheve relevant, the lenglh of
fixeduterm customer contracts,

Right of use gssets and liabilities

The Group leases a number of properlies in the jurisdictions in which it operates, recognised in accordance with
IFRS816 (note 13).

In caloulating the assel/liability attached to several of the lease agreements the Group has required use of an
Incremental Bortowing Rate {“IBR"), The IBR has considered the risk-free vate aliributable Lo the curtency, location
and lease lerm of each property, adjusted to reflect the interest rates the Group would be able to achieve based upon
its existing financing arrangements.
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Critical acconnting judgements anl key sources of estimation {confinued)

The Directors have applied judgement fo detenmine the lease {etin for contracts that inglude a renesval or break
option. Extension options and break clauses are inoluded in a number of the Group’s lease agreements to maximise
the flexibility in managing operational assets, In determining the lease lerm, the Directors have considered all facts,
circumstances and the exercise dates of such clauses. Extension options and break clauses are only reflected in the
lease tern: if there is reasonabiy certainty they will be exercised.

Impairment of goodwill and intanpible fixed assels

The Direciors nusl assess whether intengible assets have been impaired durieg the perlod, Factors laken into
consideration in reaching such a decision include the econemic viability and expected future financial performance
of the asset and where it is a compenent of a larger cash gencraling unit, the viabilily, expected future performance
of that unit using a discounted cashflow model as at the perlod end and the assessed fair value of each cash
generating unit, The key estimates and assumptions that feature in the impairment test is the selection of pre-tax
discount rate relative to the specific risks of the cash-generating unit and the preparation of pre-tax cash flows using
director approved forecasis with growth rates (hat represent the Divectors’ best estimates, (hote 15)
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4, Reyeous

The analysis of the Group’s revenue for the period is as follows:

2022
£m
Turnover 178.6
Other revenne 0.6
175.2
The analysis of the revenue by geographic region is us follows:
2022
£m
UK based divisions 176.5
Middle East based divisions 2.7
1792
5. Staff costs
The agpregate payrall costs (including directors’ remunevation) were as follows:
2022
£m
Wages and sataties 91.4
Social secuyity costs 8.0
Pension costs, defined conlribution scheme 4.5
103.D

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including the Direclors) during the period, analysed by
category was as follows:

2022

No.

Site and operational 2,087
Administiation and support 174
3,161
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6.  Operating loss

Avrived at after charging/{crediting)

2022

£m

Depreciation expense 8.7
Depreciation on right of use asscts 8.5
Amortisation expense 5.0
Expense on shost term leases ) . 08

7. Auditors® remuneration

Audit fees of £0.5m were incurred by the Group during the period, aft fees relate to the audit of the Group. There

were no fees incurred related to non-audit services,

8. Other gains and losses

The Group’s other gains or losges for the period ave ay follows:

2022
£m
Loss ot disposal of property plant end equipment 0.3
9. Finance income and costs

2022
£m

Finanece Income
Interest on bank deposits 0.1
0.1

Finance casts

Interest on external borrovwings 2.0
Interest on lease liabiiities 10.8
22.8
Net finance cosis 22.7
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10, Exceptlanal iteus

2022

£m

Acquisition costs related lo business combinations 5.8
Aspris formation and reerganisalion costs 1.3
Other transaction casts and charitable donations 0.7
T8

Acquisition costs on business combinaticns relate to the acquisilion of Aspris Children's Services Limited (£2.6m)
from the Priory Group, the acquisition of 8C Topeo Limited (£3.1m), and the acquisition of Aspris (Arden) Linsited
(£0.1m).

Aspris formation and rearganisation costs relate to alher expenses arising on the formation of the Aspris business as
standalone from the Priory Group and include marketing-related expenses associated with the new Aspris brand,

Reorganisation costs primarily relate to the revision 1o redundancy cosis associated with exit of certain customer
conlracts and the implementation of revised management orgerisational slrucliees in the Group.

Olher transaction costs relate to the Group's assessiment, and execution, of other corporate and property related
trangactions.

The Group elected to meke g one-off contvibution to UNICEF's Ukvaine appen! during the period.

11, Taxation

Tax yecognised in fhe income statement

2022
Cuvrent tax £m
Current Lax on faxable income for ihe period 1.3
Deferved tax (note 26)
Ovigination and reversal of temporary differences 1.6
Tax credited in {lie period (0.3}

The yeasons for the difference between the actual tax charge for the yeat and the slandard rate of corporation tax
applied to the losses for the year are as fotlows:-

2022

£m

Lass for the year (274}
Tax wsing the conipany's lax rale 19% (5.2}
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 5.3
Tax rate changes (0.9
Tota) tax credited in the period (0.3)
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Taxation (continued)

As a result of the Finance Bill 2021 the vates of income tex are expected to increase from 19% to 25% for the period
beginning April 2023,

Tax liabilities are recognised when, despite the Group's belief {hat its tax return positions nre suppertable, the
Directors believe it s more Iikely than not that a taxation suthority would accept ils fiilng position.

The Divectors believe that its accruals for tax liebilitics are adequate for all open audit years based on its assessment
of many facters including past experlence and interpretations of tax law,

No material uncertain tax positions exist as at 31 August 2022. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions

and mnay involve a series of complex judgements about future events. To the exient that the final tax outcame of
these matters is different then the defermination is made.

12, Property plant and equipment

Group
Furniture, Properties
Land aod fittings and Motor under
bulldings equipment vehicles  construction Tatal
£m £m £1m £ £m
Cost or valuation
Additions 23 6.3 Q.1 32 12,1
Acquired through business
combinations 1224 29.6 0.6 3.3 155.9
Disposals {1.0) {0.5) - .2 (173
Transfers . 06 03 o - (0.9 -
At 31 August 2022 o 1243 359 o7 54 i 166.3
Deprecintion S ——
Charge for the period 1.9 6.7 ¢.1 - 8.7
Eliminated on disposal _ vy - (0.3) - - . (0.5)
At 31 August 2022 o L7 . 6.4 0.1 - 8.2
Carrying amount
At 31 Augusi 2022 122.6 29.5 0.6 5.4 158.1

Under the terms of the Group’s external borrowings there is a fixed charge, in favour of the external lenders, over all
property acquired for a consideration of aver £0.751n. Please refer to note 22 for firther information on the Group’s
external borrowings.
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13. Right of use assets sand Habilities

Aspris Holdeo Limited

{continued)

Group
Assets

Property  Motor vehicles Total

£ ne Lm Em

Cost or valuation
Acquired through business 150.8 2.4 153.2
combinations
Addilions 30 0.5 3.5
Modifications 8.3 - 83
Disposals (0.1) (0.1) - {02)
Al 3] August 2022 162.0 2.8 164.8
Depreciation
Charge fov the pariod 7.3 1.2 8.5
Eliminated on disposal - 0.1 0.1
At 31 Aupust 2022 73 1.1 8.4
Carry{ng amouut
At 31 August 2022 154.7 1.7 156.4
Linbilities

Property  Motor vehicles Tetal

£m £m £m

Acquired through business combinallons 1510 24 153.4
Addilions 3.0 0.5 3.5
Modifications i3 - 8.3
Disposals - - -
Interest 10.2 03 10.5
Lease paymeuls (14.0) (1.3) (15.3)
Foreign Exchange movements G.1 - 0.1
Af 31 August 2022 158.6 19 160.5
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Right of use assets and Tiabilities {continued)
Natuve of leasing nctivities

The Group Jeases a number of properties in the jurisdictions in which it operales. Some of these lesses provide for
payments to increase each year by inflation or index rate movements. The Greup has options to purchase ar exlend
the leases of certaln properites. As the excreising of such options is not deeined to be reasonabily certain, such
renevwal options are nol taken into account when determining the right of use agsets and liebilities. Leases of vehicles
comprise only fixed payments over fhe lease term.

Lease liabilities ave due as follpws:

Maturity analysis £
Year 1 15.5
Year?2 15,1
Year3 14,3
Yeard4 13.9
Year3 . 13.7
Onyyards i 2313
_ 3038
Less: unearned interest (143.3)
160.5

Anafysed as:

Non-Current 155.4
Current 5.1
L60,5

Amounts recognised In profit and loss

An amount of £0.9m has been recognised in profit and loss in respect of property leases that expired and were not
renewed, and for rolling lease agreements. Cash payments in respect of these leases amounted to £0.9m,

At 31 August 2022, the Group had no commitments under these agreements in excess of a two-month notice period.
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1d, Tntarngible assets
Group
Contractual
Goodwill customer
(Note 15) relatlonships Total
im Lm £1n
Cost or valuation
Acquired through business combinations . 69.3 . 9B.E 168.1
At 3] August 2022 69.3 98.8 168.1
Amortisation
Amortisation charge - 50 5.0
Inpairment {note 15) 197 - 19.7
At 31 Aupnst 2022 19.7 540 247
Carrying amount '
At 31 August 2022 49.6 23,4 143.4

All Intangible Fixed Assets (“TFAs") were Identified on Purchase Price Allocalion exercises (“PPA™) exercises
carried out on behalf of management by an independent expert, at two peints:

1. Acquisition of Priory Education Seryices 1.imited (“PESL" - subsequently rename Aspris Children’s
Services Limited) by Aspris Holdeo Limited on 31 August 2021

2. Acquisition of SC Topeo Limited by Aspris Children's Services Limited on 28 January 2022

3. Acquisition of Hollybtue Healthcare (Arden) Limited, tatterly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited

All IFAa have been amortised in line with useful economio lives determined by management at each relevent
acquisition date.

In accordance with aceounting standards, the Group undertakes an annual revies of Goodiill and where other IFAs
where there are indicaters of impairtnent,
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15. Goodwill and imprirment

Goodwil] represents the excess of the consideration over the fair value of the nel assets acquired on the purchase of
the subsidiary companies. In accordance with TERS, lhis balance is not amartised and is subject to annuaf impairment
reviews, Goodwill hes been allocated to each cash-geiterating unit (“CGU™) based on Purchase price Allocatian
(“PPA™) exerciscs:

1. Acquisition of Priory Education Services Lunited ("PESL” — subsequently renamsad Aspris Children’s
Services Limited) by Aspris Hotdco Limited on 31 August 2021

2. Acquisition of 8C Topco Limiled by Aspris Children’s Services Limited on 28 January 2022

3. Acquisltion of Hollyblue Healthcars {Arden) Limited, latterly renamed Aspris (Arden} Limiled

ACSL Sand-  Arden Total

Group castle
Group
£m £m £m im
Goodwill recognised during the peried 21.0 47,7 0.6 69.3
Impairment recognised during the period - 19.7 - 19.7)
Goadwill 21,0 28.0 0.6 496

In accordance with accounting standards, the Group undertakes an annual review of Goodwill,

In order to determine if there has been any Impairment of Goodwill, manogement prepared caloulations of the
recoversble amount for each CGU. For hoth ACSL Group and the Sandcastie Care Group the recoverable value is
determined by the forecast present value of future cash flows of the CGU based on S-year projections ending in a
terminal grovwih rate assumption. Forecasts are based on the assumplions set out below:

Key Assumptions ACSL Group Sandeastle Care
Diiscount Rate 11.0% 10.3%
Terminal Growth Rate 2.0% L0%
Operating Margin 10.3% 20.6%

ACSL Gronp

Since the date of acquisition, the ACSL. Group has maintained performance in fine with the budgeted targets set for
the business. Operational challenges, particularly regarding consiraints on the availabilily of staff have been
effectively managed, without 2 material adverse impect on ACSL’s profitability for the period.

Forecast for FY23 {s based on budget prepaved by management and approved by the Board, with appropriate
adjustments for trading at 31 August 2022, Operating profit is forecast to increase al 2% CAGR between IF¥24 and
FY27. Replacement capex to mainlain the cstate has also been assumed, on par with FY23 budgeted levels.

Regaiding the Group’s acquisition of 100% of the share capital of ACSL Group on 31 August 2021 the Group nssessed
the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired to be £41.2m, compared to the lotal consideration of £62.2m, giving
rise to £21,0m intangible gooduwill being recognised by the Grovp. As at 31 August 2022 Management assessed the
recoverable amount for ACSL Group to be £241.1m, £19.5:m greater than the canying value, and thus no Impatrment
to the Goodwill atising on acquisition is recognised in the peried,
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Goodwill and impajrment (confinued)
Sandeastie Care Group

Since the date of acquisition, the Sandeastle Care business has maintained a high quality raling performance of over
90% post-acquisition, but the business has been impacted by operational challenges that have reduced both its
available capacity and utifisation, Whiist aspects of these chailenges are not though fo be permanent, they have
impacted the overall assessment of the present value of future cashflows from the business. Thess chalienges include
staffing constreints thet have led to reduced total occupancy and an adverss impact on operating margins compayed to
the budpeted targels for the business,

Forecast for FY23 is based on the budget prepared by management and approved by the Board, with appropriate
adjustments for trading at 31 August 2022, Operating profit is forecast lo increase al 1% CAGR bebween FY24 and
Y27, Replacement capex lo maintain the eslate has also been assumed, on par with FY23 budgeted levels.

Regarding the Group’s acquisition of 100% of the share capital of SC TopCa Limited on 28 January 2022 the Group
agsessed the falr value of identi{isble net asscts scquited to be £14.0m, eompared to the lotal consideration of £61.71m,
giving rise to £47,7m inlangible poodwill being recognised by the Group.

Management assessed the recoverable amount for Sandeastie Care Group to be £77.6m, £19.7m lower than the
carying value of the CGU on a comparable basis at balance sheet date, and as such have impaired the goodwill
asgociated with the CGU by the shortfall in carrying value versus the recoverablé amount,

Impairment sensitlvities for ACSL Group and Snudeastle Care Group

1f any one of the following assumptions were amended by | percentage point, the impact on the impairment value
would be as follows;

Sensitivities 1 Aspris Sandcastle Carg |
Discount Rate (1% increase) Reduction fo carrying value | Reduction te carrying value
flom £241,1m to £221,2m from £77.6m to £71.6m
Terninal Growth Rate (1% reduction) I Reduction fo cariying valie | Reduction o carrylng valus
from £241,1m to £220.7m from £77.6mto £71,5m
Qperating Margin (1% reduction beyond FY27) | Reduction to carrying value | Reduction to carmrying value
from £241.1m 1o £223.0m from £77.6m to £7:1.8m

Aspris (Avden) Limlited

The assets held by Aspris {Arden) Limited consist of land aad buildings, these were at faic value on acquisition,
there are no subsequent indicators of impairment o the assels of Aspiis (Arden) Limited, Since the acquisition of
Atrden the business has been performing in {ine with expectations, and thus no impalrment to the Goodwill arising
on aequisition is required in the period.
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16. Investiments - Group Subsidinries

Details of the group subsidiaries as at 31 August 2022 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Aspris Midco Limited

Aspris Bidco Limited

Aspris Childven’s Services Limited
Coxlease School Limited

Castlecare Group Limited

Pragress Care and Education Limited
Speciality Care Limited

Strathmore College Limited

Aspris (Thetford 1) Limited

Aspris New Education Services Limited
Casftlecars Holdings limited

Quantum Care (UX) Limited
Speciality Care (Rest Homes) Limited
Speciality Care (Medicare) Limited

Specialised Courses Offering Purposefy)
Fducation Limited

Aspris (Thetford 2) Limited
Dunhall Property Limited
Castle Homes Care Limlted
Casllecare Cymru Limited
Castle Homes Limited
Rothcare Estates Limited
Castlecare Bducation Limited

(continued)

Principal activity

Halding company
Holding company

Specialist educetion services

Non trading

Non trading
Children’s homes
Holding company
Care delivery
Non trading
Education

Non trading
Children’s care hornes
Care delivery
Holding company
Care delivery

Non trading
Non trading
Children’s care homes
Children’s care homes
Chiidren’s care homes

Propetty company

Specialist education services
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Registered office

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Xingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Klngdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Unlted Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Pyoportion of
ownership
interest and
voling rights
100%

100%

160%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%



Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

(continued)

Investments (continued)

Thetford Trustee LLP Non trading United Kingdom 100%
Asptis (Troup House) Limited ¥ Education United Kingdom 100%
Aspire Scotland Holdings Limited* Holding company United Kingdom 100%
Aspire Scotland Limited* Children’s care and education  United Kingdom 100%
Gatexy Cafe Limited* Children's care and education United Kingdom 100%
Galaxy UK Leisure Limited* Children’s care and education United Kingdom 100%
SC Tepeo 1.imited** Holding company United Kingdom 100%
SC Bidco Limited™** Holding company United Kingdom 160%
Natabra Properties Limited** Property company United Kingdom 100%
Sandcastle Care Holdings Limited** Helding compeny United Kingdom 100%
Sandeastle Cave Limited** Children's care homes United Kingdom 100%
Portixol UK Limited** Propetty company United Kingdom 100%
Aspris {Arden) Limited Property company United Kingdom 100%
Priory Healthcare LLC*®* Healthcare UaAE 0%

Uniless stated otherwise the registered address of each subsidiary is: The Forge, Church Streel West, Woking,
Surrey, Englend, GU21 6HT

*Company regisiered address is: Radio City Building, 12 Bridgend, Kilbirnie, Scottand, KA25 7DF

*4Campany registered address is: 49 Whitegale Drive, Bleckpool, Lancashire, England, FY3 9DG

*#% A spris Group controls Priory Healthosre LLC through & combination of contructugl agreements end the ability to direct the finsrcial aod
operetiona! manegement of he entity

Aspriz Holdeo Limited has given statutory guarantees against all the oulstanding lizbillties of all wholly owned
subsidiaries es at 31 August 2022, This thereby allowed dormant subsidiarics t¢ be exempt from the requirement to
prepare and file annual accounts under section 394A or the Companies Act, and non-dormant subsidieries to be
exempt from the annual audit requirement under Section 479A of the Companies Act, for the period ended 31
August 2022.

The Group has control of a 60% interest in Saudi Healthcare LLC (“SHc"), an entity registered in K8A, which
operates a Wellbeing Centre in Riyadh. The operatlon, althongh Important to management's futwre plaps and
strategy in the region, is not seen as material in the context of these Financial Staternents.

During the period the Group loaned £1.1m to SHe, in eddition to the £0.1m interest in share capital and £0.3m.
acquired on business combinetion. SHe did not trade during the period and incurred losses of £0.9m, the Group®s
share of these losses £0.5m have beeh recognised in operating costs,

Investments - Company

Group

2022

Tuveséments made during period - Cost Em
Aspris Midco Limited 1191
At31 August 2022 119.1
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Aupust 2022

(continued)

17. Business cambinations

Acguisition of subsidiary — Aspris Ciildren’s Services Limited and subsidiaries

On 31 August 2021, the Group acquired 100% of the issued shave capital of Priory Education Services Limited
(latterly named Aspris Childen’s Services [imited), obfaining control, The principal activity of Aspris Chiidren’s
Services Limited ("ACSL™) s provision of specialist schools, colleges, children’s homes and fostering. ACSL was
acquired by Aspris Bidco Limited, & wholly osned subsidiaty of Asptis Haldco Limited, This teansaction was
undertaken to purchase the children’s services and Middle East operations of the Priory Group, of which ACSL and

its subsidiaries vwere previously members of.

The 100% shaveholding in ACSL was obtained for cash consideration of £62.2m,

As part of the acquisition, jeans totalling £90.1m between ACSL and ifs subsidiarics, and Prioty Group were seitled,

The amounts recognlsed in respect of the identifiable assels acquired and liabilifies assumed are as sct out in the

table befow:
£m \]?:l?ll: a(l;j,::;t‘u/l:'i::'z Tni valuo
Assels and Iiabllitles acquirved
Property, plant and equipment 134.2 5.0 139.2
Right of use assets 153.2 {0.2) 153.0
[ntanplble asaets 27.2 152 424
Trade and other receivables 127 0.1 13.8
Cash and cash equivalent 1.9 - 1.9
Lease labilities {153.2) - (153.2)
Trade and other payubles (134.0) - (134.0)
Provisions (0.8) - (0.8)
Deferred fax linbilities <L {17.3) @1.1)
Total ldentifiable assets 38.4 2.8 41,2
Goodwill - - 210
Total consideration 62.2
Satisfied by:
Cash 62,2
Cash flow analysis:
Cash consideralion 622
Less: castt and cash equivalent balaaces acquired (1.9}
Met cash outflow arising on acquisition 60.3
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Busijness comhinations (continued)

The fair value of the finenclal assets includes receivables with a falr value of £12.2m and & gross contractual value
of £12,6m. The best estimale at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not (0 be collected are £0.4m.

The goodwill of £2 1 arising from the acquisition consists of the presence of eertain infangible assels, which do not
qualify for separate vrecogbition, such as;

= Assembled workforce of ACSL, including both the UK and Middls Rast workforce

¢ Aspris® gbility 1o extend the existing relationships acquired with Local Autherities beyond the useful
economic life anticipated al initial acquisition

*  Development of new relationships in the Middle East

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income lax purposes,
Acquisifion related costs of £2.3m arese as a result of the (ransaction.
Acquisition of subsidiary - SC Topeo Limited and subsidiaries

On 28 January 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued shave capital of SC Topco Limited (*Sandcastie Care’},
oblaining control, ‘The principal activity of Sandeastle Care is the provision of therapeutic care humes for children.
Sandeastle Care was acquired o achieve the creation of a consolidated business in the Waterland group that is
focused on providing children's service. The transaction provides Aspris with greater coverage in the Notthwest of
England, where Sandeastle Cares’ properties ave primatily located.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Angust 2022
{continued)
Business combinations (coutinned)

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquived und liabilities assumed are as set out in the
table below:

fm Book Fair value Fair
Value ndjustments value
Asscts and liabilities acquired
Property, plant and equipment 24.4 (13.2) 11.2
Right of use assets 0.2 - 0.2
Intengible aascls 12.0 44.4 56.4
Trade and other teceivables 3.8 - 3.8
Cash and cash equivalent 3.5 - 34
Leasc liabilities (0.2) - {0.2)
Trade and other payables (2.5} - (2.5)
Income tax liability (LK) - 1.1y
Laoans and borrowings (41.3) - (41.3)
Deferred tux liabilltics 0y (15.9) (16.1)
Total identifiable assels o 1.3) 15.3 ‘_--1:5_0_
Goodwill - - a1y
Taotal consideration 61.7
Satlsfied by:
Cash 817
Castr flow analysis:
Cash consideration 61.7
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (3.6)
WNet cash outflow acising on acquisition 58.1

The fair value of the financial assets includes receivables with a fair value of £3 4m and a gress contraclual value of
£3.4m.

The goodwill of £47.7m arising from the acquisition consists of the presence of cerfain intangible assels, which do
not qualify for separate recognition, such as;

*  Assembled workforce of Sandcastle Care.
s Sandcaslle Care’s ability to extend the existing relationships acquited with Local Authorities beyond the
usefit] economic lifs anticipated at initial acquisition.

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for corporation tax purposes.

Acquisition velated cosis of £3.1m erose as e result of the transaction.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Netes o the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

(continued)
Business comblnations (continucd)

Acquisition of subsidiary — Aspris (Arden) Limited

On 31 March 2022, the Group acquired 160% of the issued share capilul of Hollybluc Healihcare (Arden) Limited,

Iatterly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited on obteining control. 1ts principal selivity is a property lessor, The

purchase of Follyblue Heal{hcare (Arden) Limited enabled the acquisition of the fiechold Inlerests in propertics
previously leased to the Group, This included praperties thal had previously formed past of the Priory Group’s
residentia] adult care division. Subsequent 1o the purchase of Hollyblue (Arden) Limited such properties were

dispoged of by the Aspris Group fo the Priory Group st fair value,

The aniounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assels acquired and liabilities assumed are as set oul in the

table below:
£am Book Value i e vatus
Asscts aud Habilities acquired
Property, plant and equipment 5.5 - 5.5
Trade and other payables 0.1) - (0.1)
Income tax liability 0.1) - (0.1}
Deferred tax liabilities o - (0.6) (0.6)
Total identifiable assets 5.3 ©.6) 47
Goodwill - - 0.6
Total conslderation 53
Satisfied by:
Cash 5.3
Cash {low aunplysis:
Cash consideyation 5.3
Less. cash and cash equivalent balances acquired -
Net cash oulflow atising on aequisition 5.3

None of the goodwill is cxpected to be deduclible for corporation tax purposes,

Acquisition refated costs of £0.1m arose a5 a result of the transaction.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

(continued)
. Business combinations (coutinued)

Tmpact of the acquirees on amounts reported in the statemeut of comprekensive income

The amounis of revenue and profit or loss of the acquirees since acquisition date included in the consclidaled

statement of income for the reperting pericd is as foliows:

Aspris  Sundeastle  Arden

£ £ £m

Revenue 62,7 16,5 0.0

Operating cost (140.9) (i5.5) 0.3

Operating profit before impairment and other losses and exceptional 218 1.0 03
tosls

Tmpairment and other losses and excepiional cosis (8.0) (19.5) 0.0

Operating profit _ 13.8 (18.8) 0.3

The revenue and profit or loss of the combined entity for the current reporting period as through the acquisition date
for all business combinations that accurred during the year had been at the beginning of the 12 month trading pariod

stacting 1 September 2021, is as follows:

£m
Revenue 191.0
Operating cost ar7
Operating profit before impaivnent and cther losses and exceptional 19.3
costs
Impairment and other losses and exceptional costs 28.3)
Operating profit {9.0)
18, Trade and other receivables
Group Company
31 August 31 August
2022 2022
Current fm £m
Trade recejvables 197 -
Provision for Impairment of trade receivables (0.1) -
Wet trade receivables 19.6 -
Acerued income 04 -
Prepayments 17 -
Loans reccivable fram joint venture (note 28) 1.0 -
Other receivables _ 1.8 a2
24.5 0.2

All cmirent receivables are due within 1 year of balance sheet date. None of these are subject 1o material or significant
credit losses, Credit risk is not considered to be significant given that over 90% of revenue Is devived from publicly

funded entitles.

Amounts reccivable from joint venlure are not subject to interest and are repayable on demand.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Angust 2022

{continued)
19, Cash and cnsh equivalents
Greup  Company
2022 2022
fm £m
Cash at bank 8.1 0.7

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and at bank. Cash at bank i3 held with banks or financial
institution counterparties which are investment grade rated, Management do hot expect any losses from non-
performance of counterparties.

20 Deferred income

Group

2022

£m

Acquired through business combination 28.9
Deferred during the year 28.8
Recognised during the year (28.93
28.8

Deferted Income Is in respect of services Inveleed In advance of delivery and is relensed as services ave delivered.

21, Issued capitrl and reserves

Allotted, ealled up and fully paid shaves

2022 2022

No. £000

A Otdinery shares of £1 eech 82,851,341 82,851
R Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,782,603 1,783
C Ordinary shaves ol £1 each 1,232,266 12
85,866,210 84,646
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Asptis Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

(continued)
Issued eapital aud reserves (continued)
New shares allptted

Class No. Couslderation
£000
A Ordinary shares of £1 each! 82,851,341 116,861
B Ordinary shaves of £1 ench? 1,782,603 2,223
C Oudinaty shares of £1 cach? 1,232,266 36
85,866,210 119,124

' A Ordinary shares of £1 nach have full voling :md pnymcnls o[dwldcnd righls, right to distdbutions alongside B Qudinary shacgholders in
priocity to C Ordinary sharchaider, subjoct {o @ . Rights ta distcthutions once the treshol has heen suepasted alongside the B Ordinaty
sharcholders nnd C Osdinary shareholders.

* B Ordinnry shaves of £1 ezch fiave full voling and payments of dividend righls, right ta disiributions alongside A Otdmary sharcholders in
prioity ta C Cedinary shareholdes; subject to a thrashold. Rights o distributians once the Mirethold has been surp. ide the A Ordingey
shatebalders and C Ordinsry shareholders,

7 € Ordinary shores of £[ each hive no valiog rights, € Ordinaty shares have rights to dividends end distrfbntions oace the threshold hos been
surprssed alongside the A and B Ordinacy gharchalders.

22, Loans and harvewings

Group

2022

Non-current loans aud borrowings £m
Exlernal loans 165.0
Capitalised debt fees 54)
External barrowlngs 159.6

The Group entered into a senior term and revolving facility agreement on 27 August 2021 to facilitete the
acquisition of Sandcastle Care and future acquisitions. As at the end of the period the drawn senior facilities of
£165.0m ave secured aver the Group®s assels and carry interest 6t a varizble mavgin over the applicable SONIA rate.
The loans ave repnyable 7 years fiom the date of completion of the acquisition of ACSL.

External horrowings are recognised at fair value net of transaction costs that ars directly altibutable 1o the credit
facilitics. At the bulance sheet date this was £5.4m.

The Group’s Losn factlities arc subject to a single financial covenant tesi which is essessed querterly. This covenant
asseases the totsl gross Leverage of the Group as a ratio to proforma LTM ERBITDA of the conselidated group at
each quarteily test date, At the balance sheet date the covenant threshald was 7.4%, as at 31 August 2022 the ratio
level was materially below this threshold at a level of 4.9x, This equates {0 £11.6m of headroom expressed in terms
of proforma LTM EBITDA.

As at 31 August 2022 the Graup had letters af credit in place atmounting to £2.3r. This smount is vingfenced within
the Group’s total revolving oredit facility of £22m for this purpose, with no ather stnounts drawa under this facility
as at the balance sheet date, These letters issued by the Qroup’s pelncipal bankers to the Group’s lasurers, an
employee pension scheme, and (0 support credit granted under supplier contracts.
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Notes fo the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

(continued)
23, Pravisions
Lepal
provision
2022
Em
Acquired through business combination 0.8
Charged in income statement 0.4
Used during year {0.2)
10
24. Trade and other payahles

Group  Comphuny
2022 2022
£m Em
Trade payables 31 -
Accrued expenses 11.7 -
Amounts due to related parties - 0.9
Social security and other taxes 2,3 -

Other payables 4.4
21.5 0.9

Other payables consist of credit balances, funds held on bebalf of ADEK for the operation and investment of the
school operated by the Group and savings held on behalf of young persons.

25, Pension

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes. The pension cost chayge for the petiod represents
conlributions payable by the Group to the scheme and amounted to £4.5m

16, Deferved tax

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 19%, The
increase in corporation tax to 25% is expected o be effective from April 2023, This new rate will be applicd to
deferred 1ax balances which are expecied (o reverse ps at 1 Seplember 2022,

Deferred e assels have been recognised in respect of all temporary dilferences giving rise to deferred tax assets
wliere the Directlors believe it is probable that these assets will be recovered,

The movements in deferred tax assets and lisbilities (prlor to the offsetilng of balances within the same jurisdiction
a5 perruitted by 1AS 12) dudlug the periad are shown below.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Aagusi 2022
(continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Detalls of the deferred tax }iability, amounls recognised in the profit ot lass and amounts recoghised in other
comprehenstve income are as follows:

Recopnised in Recoguised in Recognised in T'otal
business income other 31 August
combinrtions comprehensive 2022

{Note 17) income
Intangible asset differences 23.8 (1.3) - 225
Tangible asset differences 14.0 0.3 - Y4
37,8 (1.6} - 3622

Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of eapital tax losses carried forward in the UK totalling £2.4m
as there is insufficient evidence as 1o their recoverability,

27, Finaitcial fnstruments
Financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and financial llabilities comprise all assets and liabilities reflected in the staterment of financial

position, excluding property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, deferred tax assets, prepayments and deferréd
tax liabilities,

Group Company
Z422 2012
Financial asscts £m &m
Itvestments in subsldiaties - 119.1
Trade and other receivables 22.8 02
Cash and cash equivalent 18.1 0.7
40,9 124.0

Financial liabilitics
Trade and other payables 235 0.9
Incoine tax liability 09 -
Deferred income 28.8 -
Lense liabilities 160.5 -
Loans and borrowings 159.6 -
Provisions 10 N -
372.3 4.9

There is no difference between the carrying valuc of financial insfruments and their fair value, The Group has no
financial instruments that are measured at fair value,

The Group does not require collateral in vespect of financial assets.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continued)

Finaneial tustrunients {conlinued)
Financial visk mansgenent

The Group Is exposed to financial risks i the form of sredit, intorest and Jiquidity sisks vhich arise in the normal
eourse of business, The primary financial visks that the Group is exposed lo are delailed below:

Credit rislc - Cash deposits and Trade recelvables
Financial instruments which potentially exposs the Group to credit risk consist primarily of cash and ade receivables.

Cash is only deposited with major [inancial institutions that satisfy cerlain credil criteria. Credit risk in relation to
trade receivables is not considered to be significant given that the vast majority of revenue is derfved from publicly
funded education and care services. The Group provides credit to customers in the normal course of business and the
balance sheel is net of allowances of £0.1im for doubtful recelvables. The Group measures those allowances at an
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit [osses using both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis
based on the Group's historlcal experience and forward-laoking nformatien.

Allowances against doubtful debls are recognised against trade receivables based on cstimated irvecoverable amounts,
determined by reference o pasl experience of the counterparty. The majority of the Group*s allowance for doubtfis!
debls relates to specific trade receivables that are not considered to be recoverable, and management only considers it
appropriate lu create a collective provision based on the age of the trede receivable in respect of certain lypes of {rade
receivables,

The aging of trade recetvables at 31 August is as follows:

£
Curmrent 49
30-60 duys 14,0
60-150 days 0.5
150 days + 03
19.7

The Directors consider thal the catrying amount of trade and cther receivables i approximately equal to their fair
value,

Trade receivables at least 60 days past due for which ne loss allowance has been made at 31 December is £0.7m,

Further to lhe credil tisks described on cash and teade receivables the Group dees not have any significant credil risk
exposure ke any single connterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics, The Group defines
eounterparties as having similar charactatistics if they are related entities,

There is no concern ovey the credit quality of amounts past due but for which no loss aflowances has been recognised
since the risk Is spread over a numbsr of unrelated counterparties which include central and Jocal Government. The
maximum exposuve 10 credit risk al the repotting dale is the cairying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above and cash held by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Fioancial risk management (ecoutinued)

Interest rate risk —Senior and Revolving credit focilitles containg a varigble element Hiked (o Stevling Overnight
Tndex Average

The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving external credit facilities, The facilities are
denominated in pounds and are botrowed with interest at a vartabie margin over the applicable SONIA rate. Senior
loans ate repayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving facllities are repayable on 31 Avgust 2026.

In addition to assessments reguired by macro-economic events, the Group monitors its near term interest rate exposure
on & monthly basis, and longer term exposure oy & bi-artinual basis. This includes the review of the options available
to it for the hedging of interest rate risk, but currently docs not have a hedged component to the interest burden on its
external debt, in light of prevaiiing matket conditions, and the high cost ofhedging instruments, the Divectors believe
the Group has sufficient capacity o address the rlsk of interest sate rises,

Based on modelling performed, & 100 basls point shift in SONIA rates would have a £1,65m increase or decrense on
interest payments due on the Group’s external debt. A 350 basis point shift (being the maxitum tikefy change in
interest rates over the year from the peried end) would have an impact of £5.8mn on interest paymenis due on the
Group®s externel debs,

Liquidity risk

The Group prepares both annual and short-term cash flovy forecasts reflecting known commitments end anticipated
projects. Borrowing facilities ave utitised as necessary to finance requirements. The Group has sufficient available
bank facilities and cash flows {rom profits to fund curreat commitments.

The following table shows the contractual cash Tlow maturities for financial liabilities:

Total -1 yoars 2.5 years 5+ years

Trade and other payables 216 216
Borrowings 185.0 165.0
Lease liabilities 303.8 5.3 57.0 2313

Forelgn cuvrencey visk

Substantiaily all of the Group®s operations are in the UK and as such forsign currency risk is not deemed significant.
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Capital Risk Mauagement

(continued)

The Group’s objective when managing its cepital is to ensure {hial entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern whilst maximising returns tor stakehoiders through the oplimisation of debt and equity, The Group’s

capital structure is as follows:

2022
£m
Cash 8.1
Borrowings’ (165.0)
1.ease linbilities (160.5)
Equity 52.0
). Exeluding accrued (nterest and capitalised debt fees
Analysls of net debt
Business Cash Other
Combinations flow Inferest movernent?
Em £o1 £m £m £m
Cash 55 12.6 . - 18.1
Botrowings® N 41.3) {1237 - - (165,0)
Net Debt {(excluding (35.8) (11LY) - - (146.9)
Lease linbllities)
_Lease iiabilities (153.4} 153 (10.5) )] {160.5)
et Debt (193.0) (92.0) _ (10.5) {11.9% {307.4)

1. Excluding accrued interest and copilalised debt fzes of E5.4m
2. Relates lo non-tash mavements in lense Siabilities - sce note 13 for defails

28, Related parties

Uitimate parent and controlling party

The Compeny’s knmediate parent is Standbyco 35 B.V

The ullimate parent is Waterland Private Equity Investments B.V

The ultimete controlling party is Waterland Privale Equity Invesiments B.Y

Aspris Holdco Limited Is the smallest and largest company for which consolidated financial statements are prepared

{or public use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Related partles (continued)

Balfances and fransactions between the Company and its subsidiavies, which ave related perlies, have been eliminated
on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.

The Group is owed £1.4m from Swudi Heeithcave LLC, a related party as a joint venture investment which is equity
accounted for in these statements, there is no interest charge, and this balance {s repayable on demand. Held against
this receivable is a provision of £0.41m for the Group's shave of the inftial losses incurved aver the investiment amount
made in Saudi Heaftheare LLC, The net of the amownts owed of £ 0 is detailed in nofe 18,

The Group paid & management charge of £30,000 to WPELF VI Holding Codperatiaf W.A, a related party through
common control.

Prior to the acquisition of Aspris Group (note 17) Priory ducation Services Limited ("PESL”) was a pact of the Priory
Group, At the fime of (he transaction Prioty Group was a related party, Whilst the Growp’s operatiohs were largely
autonomous from those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the recipient of ceniral support services provided to it
by the Priory Group. These services continued under s transitional services avrangement agreed at the time of the
Group’s acquisition of PESL. This transitional agreement provided for back office support, including use of systems
and software, human resources suppor!, éstales and aspects of financial reporting assistance. This transitional stage
ingluded the implementation of Asplis® owh standalone systems and support infiestructiie, the process of whioh was
completed by 30th November 2022, with all services received under this transitional arranpement ceased 1o be
provided from that date.

On 28 January 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of SC Topeo Limited (note 17), oblaining
control, SC Topeo Limited was a velated party by the nature of commeon owhership. One of the princlpal purposes of
the acquisition was to achieve the oreation of a consclidafed business in the Waterland group that is foeused on
providing children's service.

Dhring the period an amount of £0.49m was advanced to dircotors at an interest vate equiaf to the HMRC officlal rate
of interest, on a term concurrent with the period with which the Directoss remain shaveholders in the Group, Interest
is pald by the Directors annually and early repayment of any portion of the outstanding balance is pevmitted at any
time. During the period repayments of £0.2m were made, with the rernaining £0.2m outstanding at the peried end
being Included in other recelvables (note 18)
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continued)
Key mpnugement personnel

Key management personnel arc those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
conltolling the activities of he Group.

2022
£000
Direclors’ emoluments 1,926
Direclors’ post-employment benefits 8

Total emojuments for the highest paid director were £1,153,000, this included a one-off non-recutring rewvard of
£303,000 refating to the exceptionally kigh level of corporate transaciions and reorganisation activity successfully
comipleted during the period. The value of the Company’s contvibutions paid te a defined contribution pension
scheme in respect of the highest pald direclor amounted to £4,000.

‘The number of Directors to whom rellrement benefits are accrued under money purchase pension schemes is 2,

29, Lyents after reparting dnte
Acquisition o[ BHIS Holdings Limited

Following (he close of the reporting period, and consistent wilh the Group strategy of expanding its specialist
education division, the Group cemplered the acquisition of a specialisl education provider in the UK, BHIS
Holdings Limited, on t March 2023,

The aequired business, and its wholly owned subsidiaries, provide specialist education for up to approximately 100
primary and secondary school aged young people in the Easl of England.

To support this scquisition, and the Group’s broader growth objectives, the Group entered info an extension of its
aveilable external debl facilities with its existing lenders, This new growth facility was agreed and effectlve fiom 8
February 2023, These facilities provide an additional £25m of committed available debt capacity to support he
prowth projects of the Group,

In addition, as parl of the above acquisition the Group fssued addilional equity capital to its shareholders in March
2023, with the above acquisition being funded through a combineation of & partial drawdown of the new growth debt
facility and this new equity cepital raise,
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